
MIDVALE CITY CORPORATION
RESOLUTION 2023-R-47

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING COMPLETION AND RECEIPT
OF ANNUAL AUDIT.

Whereas, pursuant to section l0-6-151 of the Utah Code, Midvale City is required to have an
independent audit in conformity with Title 51, Chapter 2a, Accounting Repods from Political
Subdivisions, Interlocal Organizations, and Other Local Entities Act; and

Whereas, pursuant to section 10-6-152 of the Utah Code, within ten ( 10) days following receipt of
the independent audit, the City is required to publish notice advising the public that the audit is complete
and available for inspection; and

Whereas, the City retained Keddington & Christensen L.L.C., to do an independent audit of the
City's accounts for fiscal year 2022-2023; and

Whereas, Keddington & Christensen L.L.C. has completed the independent audit of the City's
accounts for fiscal year 2022-2023; and

Whereas, Keddington & Christensen L.L.C., has presented the independent audit to the Mayor
and Midvale City Council; and

Whereas, the Midvale City Council wants to acknowledge receipt of the completed audit and
order that notice be published pursuant to section 1,0-6-152 of the Utah Code.

Now therefore be it resolved, by the Midvale City Council as follows:

It hereby acknowledges that the independent audit ofthe City's accounts for fiscal year 2022-2023
has been completed by Keddington & Christensen L.L.C., and submitted to the Midvale City Council. As
required by section 10-6-152 ofthe Utah Code, the City Recorder is directed to publish notice, advising
the public that the independent audit is complete and available for inspection.

This resolution shall become eilective immediately upon passage thereof.

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Midvale City, State of Utah, this 6th day of
December, 2023.

Marcus StevenSon, Mayor

ATTEST: Voting by the City Council: "Ay9"
Dustin Cettel '/
Paul Glover i/''
Quinn Sperry /'
Heidi Robinson ","
Bryant Brown L/'
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7505 South Holden Street 

Midvale, UT 84047 

Phone (801) 567-7200 

Www.midvalecity.org 

December 5, 2023 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of Midvale City:  
 
The Finance Department of Midvale City is pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
(ACFR) for Midvale City Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Utah law requires that all local governments publish, within six months of the close of the fiscal year, a 
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Princi-
ples (GAAP) and audited in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed 
Certified Public Accountants. This Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is hereby issued and submitted 
to you in accordance with these requirements. 
 
The report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of Midvale City. Manage-
ment assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information presented herein. 
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established an internal 
control framework that is designed to both protect the assets of the City from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
allow for the compiling of sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial state-
ments in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, 
the City’s internal control procedures have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute as-
surance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. To the best of manage-
ment’s knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 
 
K&C, Certified Public Accountants, has audited Midvale City’s financial statements. The goal of an inde-
pendent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the City’s financial statements, for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2023, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the ac-
counting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall finan-
cial statement presentation. 
 
GAAP require that the management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of 
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A 
can be found immediately following the independent auditor’s report.  
 
The financial reporting entity (the City) includes all funds of the primary government (i.e., the City as legally 
defined), as well as all of its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the 
primary government is financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities 
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are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations and are included as part of the primary gov-

ernment. Accordingly, the Midvale City Redevelopment Agency (RDA) and Midvale City Municipal Building 
Authority (MBA) are reported in this ACFR as special revenue funds. 

 
In addition to the basic financial statements, the ACFR includes a statistical section which provides a ten-year 

history of detailed information as a context for understanding the City’s overall financial health.  
 

 

Midvale City was incorporated in 1909. The City is governed using a Mayor/Council form of government. 
Legislative powers are vested in the five-member Council, while executive powers lie with the Mayor. The 
Mayor is elected to serve the citizens at large; the Council Members are elected by voting districts. All elect-
ed officials serve four-year terms which are staggered every two years. The elections are on a non-partisan 
basis. The City Manager is responsible for day-to-day operations and managing the employees of the City. 
 
The City provides the full range of municipal services normally associated with a municipality. In brief, the 
general government functions include park construction and maintenance, street reconstruction and 
maintenance, public improvements, engineering, building inspection, planning and zoning, and administra-
tive services. The City also operates water distribution, sewer collection and treatment, storm water mainte-
nance, waste collection, and street lighting services. Police services are provided by the Unified Police De-
partment of Greater Salt Lake (UPD) and fire services are provided by the Unified Fire Authority (UFA). 
 
With a current population of approximately 35,637, the City lies in the middle of Salt Lake County, with the 
state’s capitol, Salt Lake City, located approximately 11 miles north. Midvale provides commuter access via 
Interstates 15 and 215, State Street, and Fort Union Boulevard. Utah Transit Authority provides bus and 
lightrail service, with three light-rail stations within Midvale’s boundaries. The geographic area of the City is 
5.93 square miles. 
 

 

Midvale has a robust retail base. Sales tax revenue makes up 51 percent of General Fund revenues, and 
property tax constitutes 13 percent of General Fund revenues. While the stability of sales tax revenue is less 
predictable than property tax, the advantage to the City is the ability to delay property tax increases and 
provides the flexibility to increase property tax as needed if or when sales tax revenue declines. The state of 
Utah’s property tax formula provides the City the same amount of revenue as the prior year, plus any new 
growth that occurs in the City. The formula does not have any provisions for cost of living or inflationary in-
creases.  

Over the past ten years, General Fund revenues have increased from $15,251,660 to $23,968,744, and gen-
eral fund expenditures have increased from $12,278,872 to $19,463,396. Revenues have increased due to 
additional development in Midvale (mainly Jordan Bluffs, as discussed below), and expenditures have in-
creased to provide services to additional residences and businesses. 
 
One of three Redevelopment Project Areas in the City, Bingham Junction, consists of 390 acres in the north-
west corner of the City. The collaborative efforts of Midvale City, private developers, and the Redevelop-
ment Agency of the City (RDA) have turned this former brownfield site into a successful model for redevelo- 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 
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pment. Bingham Junction is substantially built-out with a mix of commercial, residential, and retail establish-
ments. 
 
The second project area, Jordan Bluffs, consists of 268 acres and is in the southwest corner of the City. The 
Jordan Bluffs project area and surrounding property encompasses nearly 10% of Midvale City’s total area 
and represents a significant opportunity to redevelop the former smelter property into a successful project 
with a positive contribution to the community. In 2015, the RDA entered into an Option to Purchase Agree-
ment with the current owners of this former Sharon Steel superfund site. The purpose of the agreement was 
to allow the Agency to perform due diligence and market the site for sale and development. In November 
2017, the option was transferred to Gardner Development and they purchased the property. Gardner com-
menced construction of the backbone infrastructure in 2018, which included an extension of Bingham Junc-
tion Boulevard. Vertical construction commenced in 2018 with the Wasatch residential development. In the 
summer of 2022 Zions Bancorporation completed a new 400,000 square foot banking technological campus 
in the northwest portion of the Jordan Bluffs project area.  
 
The third project area is Main Street. The RDA is excited to have created a new project area which incorpo-
rates Midvale’s historic Main Street, as well as the surrounding residential and commercial areas. This area is 
an integral component to the vitality and history of Midvale. Recent changes have added new value and ac-
tivity to the neighborhoods around Main Street and will continue to do so as redevelopment continues. 
 

Midvale City uses a long-term strategic planning model to enhance the annual budget process and work to-
wards maintaining and improving all infrastructure systems. It is the policy of the Council to maintain Gen-
eral Fund reserves at or above fifteen percent of operating revenue. Additionally, no encumbrance or ex-
penditure shall be made in excess of total departmental appropriations in the budget without the prior 
written approval of the Council. The City undertook long-term fee rate studies for the water and sewer utili-
ties in fiscal year 2021. Long-term fee rate studies for storm water, building, and planning fees were started 
in fiscal year 2022 and will be completed in fiscal year 2024.  

 

While the entire City Staff has contributed to the timely and efficient preparation of this report, special 
thanks are due to the Finance department. We also appreciate the professionalism of our auditors and their 
assistance in drafting and proofreading the ACFR. Finally, thank you to our Mayor, City Council, City Manag-
er, Assistant City Manager, and Department Heads for their dedication to making Midvale City great. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 
Mariah Hill        
Administrative Services Director/Finance Director   

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
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Midvale City, Utah 
Organization Chart 
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Midvale City, Utah 
List of Elected and Appointed Officials 

As of June 30, 2023 

Matthew Dahl ..............................................................................................City Manager 
Nathaniel Rockwood………............................................................. Assistant City Manager 
Garrett Wilcox ............................................................................................. City Attorney 
Rori Andreason.........................................................................HR Director/City Recorder 
Karen Kester…............................................................................................. City Treasurer  
Mariah Hill ............................................................................................. Finance Director  
Glen Kennedy ................................................................................. Public Works Director 
Mariah Hill ..................................................................... Administrative Services Director  
Adam Olsen ……............................................................Community Development Director 
George Vo-Duc .................................................................................... Justice Court Judge 

 

Appointed Officials 

Elected Officials 

 

Mayor  

Marcus Stevenson 

Councilmember  

Quinn Sperry 

Councilmember 

Paul Glover 

Councilmember 

Heidi Robinson 

Councilmember  

Dustin Gettel 

Councilmember  

Bryant Brown 
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MIDVALE CITY, UTAH 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of Midvale City, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of fiscal year 2023 by $133,857,790 (net position). Of this amount, $23,286,568 
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

 

• Total net position of Midvale City increased by $11,030,683 during fiscal year 2023. Of this increase, 
$9,328,361 (84.6 percent) is attributable to governmental activities, this is from tax collections exceed-
ing budgeted expectations and expenses below budgeted expectations. Business-type activities provid-
ed a $1,702,322 increase to the City’s net position, primarily due to the Water and Sewer funds oper-
ating with a positive net income. The City’s overall net position increased due to significant capital pro-
jects being delayed to future years. It is also important to note, fiscal year 2023’s governmental fund 
balance and business-type activities fund balance required prior period adjustments (see notes to the 
financial statements for additional information). 

 

• As of the close of fiscal year 2023, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund bal-
ances of $33,712,141, an increase of $5,773,012 (20.7 percent). Most of this increase is due to projects 
that were delayed in the Capital Projects, Main Street Redevelopment, and City-Wide Housing Redevel-
opment funds in fiscal year 2023. Of the total fund balance, $4,243,808 (12.6 percent) is restricted for 
debt service, development, and road activities. 

 

• At the end of fiscal year 2023, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $8,040,274, or 33.5 
percent of general fund revenues (excluding other financing sources). Utah state law allows any balance 
of unrestricted funds (assigned and unassigned fund balance) in excess of 5 percent of the total reve-
nues to be utilized for budget purposes. The maximum fund balance allowed is 35 percent of total reve-
nues. The City’s General Fund unassigned fund balance is currently at 33.5 percent of revenues. The 
City’s financial policies recommend a general fund unrestricted fund balance of at least 15 percent. 

 

• The City’s total long-term obligations decreased $5,725,652 (7.55 percent). This is primarily due to regu-
larly scheduled debt service payments. 

 
• At the end of fiscal year 2023, the City recognized total net pension liability of $741,782 and a net pen-

sion asset of $0. Much of this change is due to investment earnings not meeting expectations. More in-
formation regarding the City’s retirement plans can be found on page 77 and in the Required Supple-
mentary Information beginning on page 88. 
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REPORT OVERVIEW 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. 
The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial state-
ments, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s 
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred in-
flows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors should also be considered. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the fis-
cal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are taken into account regard-
less of when cash is received or paid. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally sup-
ported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are in-
tended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type ac-
tivities). The governmental activities of the City include general government; public safety; highways and 
public improvements; parks, recreation, and public property; redevelopment; community development; and 
other. The business-type activities of the City include public utilities (water, sewer, storm water, sanitation, 
street lighting) and telecommunications. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segre-
gated for specific activities or objectives. The City also uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate com-
pliance with finance-related requirements. All of the City’s funds can be divided into two categories: govern-
mental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions reported as govern-
mental activities in the government-wide financial statements. These fund statements focus on how money 
flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year end that are available for spending. Such infor-
mation may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better under-
stand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activi-
ties. 
 
Governmental funds report the difference between their assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources as fund balance, which is divided into nonspendable, restricted, com-
mitted, assigned, and unassigned portions. Nonspendable balances include inventories and prepaid expendi-
tures that are not expected to be converted to cash. Restricted balances include net fund resources of the 
City that are subject to external constraints due to state or federal laws or externally imposed conditions by 
grantors or creditors. Restrictions include debt service reserve requirements, redevelopment agency funds, 
road funds, and development related funds. Assigned balances in the general fund and other governmental 
funds are those that do not meet the requirements of restricted or committed but are intended to be used 
for specific purposes. In addition, fund balances appropriated in a subsequent fiscal year are also recorded as 
assigned fund balance. Unassigned balances in the General Fund are all other available net resources. At June 
30, 2023, the City’s combined governmental fund balance is $33,712,141 ($4,243,808 in restricted, 
$21,428,059 in assigned, and $8,040,274 in unassigned fund balances). Additional detail regarding govern-
mental fund balances can be found on the governmental funds balance sheet located on page 32 of this re-
port. 
 
Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and other financial assets readily convertible to cash. The governmental fund statements pro-
vide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it pro-
vides. Governmental fund information helps users determine the financial resources that can be spent in the 
near future to finance the City’s programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities 
and governmental funds is detailed in a reconciliation included with the fund financial statements. 
 
The City maintains the following five individual governmental funds: 

General 
Capital Projects 
Debt Service 
Redevelopment Agency 
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Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general, capital projects, and debt 
service funds, all of which are major funds. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 33-39 of this report. 
 
Proprietary Funds – The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
The City uses enterprise funds to account for its Water, Sewer, Storm Water, Sanitation, Streetlight, and Tele-
communication Funds.  
 
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the 
City’s various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet of vehicles and infor-
mation technology. Internal service fund assets have been included in the governmental activities in the gov-
ernment wide statements, but the income has been split into governmental and business-type activities de-
pending on contributing funds. 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for 
the water, sewer, and storm water funds, which are considered major funds of the City. Conversely, the in-
ternal service funds are combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 41-47 of this report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements – The notes provide additional information essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial state-
ments begin on page 48 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) – This section contains required supplementary information for 
the City’s pension program. The RSI section begins on page 88. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
In the case of Midvale City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred in-
flows of resources by $133,857,790 as of June 30, 2023. 
 
By far the largest portion of the City’s position (67.4 percent) reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., 
land, water shares, buildings and structure, machinery and equipment, improvements, construction in pro-
gress, intangible assets, and right of way), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still out-
standing. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending. Although the City’s investments in capital assets is reported net of related 
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, 
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
 
The following table summarized the City’s net position: 

An additional portion of the City’s net position (15.22 percent) represents resources that are subject to ex-
ternal restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position of 
$23,286,568 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  
 
As of June 30, 2023, the City can report positive balances in all three categories of net position for the gov-
ernment as a whole as well as for its separate governmental-type and business-type activities.  

Midvale City  
Summary of Net Position 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Current and other assets 42,294,771$ 36,122,784$ 18,693,690$ 15,512,049$ 60,988,461$    51,634,833$    

Capital assets 110,204,802 111,036,572 42,655,681    43,979,984    152,860,483    155,016,556    

Total Assets 152,499,573 147,159,356 61,349,371    59,492,033    213,848,944    206,651,389    

Deferred outflows of resources 1,016,420      552,859         371,988         255,168         1,388,408         808,027            

Current Liabilities 5,412,782      5,182,923      6,631,829      2,424,476      12,044,610      7,607,399         

Noncurrent Liabilities 48,330,914    51,941,982    17,048,215    18,596,580    65,379,129      70,538,562      

Total Liabilities 53,743,696    57,124,905    23,680,044    21,021,056    77,423,740      78,145,961      

Deferred inflows of resources 3,951,554      5,782,878      4,268              808,236         3,955,822         6,591,114         

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 65,982,979    63,161,804    24,215,298    24,906,854    90,198,277      88,068,658      

Restricted 19,077,481    17,806,804    1,295,464      -                  20,372,945      17,806,804      

Unrestricted 10,760,283    3,990,475      12,526,285    13,011,055    23,286,568      17,001,530      

   Total net position 95,820,743$ 84,959,083$ 38,037,048$ 37,917,909$ 133,857,790$  122,876,992$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
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Analysis of the City’s Operations – The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for the 

year ended June 30, 2023 

Midvale City  
Summary of Changes in Net Position 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

   Charges for Services 2,207,388$     3,946,480$     13,908,911$   14,556,794$   16,116,299$     18,503,274$     

   Operating Grants and Contributions 7,101,721        7,136,801        -                    -                    7,101,721          7,136,801          

   Capital Grants and Contributions 3,889,127        3,300,243        -                    -                    3,889,127          3,300,243          

General Revenues:

   Property Taxes 3,636,704        4,645,942        -                    -                    3,636,704          4,645,942          

   Sales Taxes 12,306,587     12,037,076     -                    -                    12,306,587       12,037,076       

   Other Taxes 3,669,110        2,799,999        -                    -                    3,669,110          2,799,999          

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 7,722                72,399             185,021           181,786           192,743             254,185             

Intergovernmental 2,176,718        -                    -                    -                    2,176,718          -                      

   Other 1,883,344        719,731           264,003           (4,231)              2,147,347          715,500             

      Total revenues 36,878,421     34,658,671     14,357,935     14,734,349     51,236,356       49,393,020       

Expenses:

   General Government 4,725,479        10,513,263     -                    -                    4,725,479          10,513,263       

   Public Safety 11,795,690     10,285,577     -                    -                    11,795,690       10,285,577       

   Highways and Public Improvements 3,824,707        2,415,708        -                    -                    3,824,707          2,415,708          

   Parks and Recreation 1,493,263        1,594,145        -                    -                    1,493,263          1,594,145          

   Redevelopment 2,180,096        2,840,234        -                    -                    2,180,096          2,840,234          

Community Development 1,292,623        1,312,434        -                    -                    1,292,623          1,312,434          

Interest on Long-term Debt 1,527,618        1,666,770        -                    -                    1,527,618          1,666,770          

Water -                    -                    5,710,183        5,472,697        5,710,183          5,472,697          

Sewer -                    -                    3,147,616        2,735,782        3,147,616          2,735,782          

Storm Water -                    -                    1,864,144        1,806,723        1,864,144          1,806,723          

Sanitation -                    -                    1,312,855        1,209,024        1,312,855          1,209,024          

Telecommunications -                    -                    965,249           948,418           965,249             948,418             

Street Lighting -                    -                    366,150           321,170           366,150             321,170             

Total Expenses 26,839,475     30,628,131     13,366,197     12,493,814     40,205,672       43,121,945       

Increase (Decrease) in Net

Position Before Transfers 10,038,945     4,030,540        991,738           2,240,535        11,030,683       6,271,075          

Transfers (710,584)          (820,369)          710,584           820,369           -                      -                      

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 9,328,361        3,210,171        1,702,322        3,060,904        11,030,683       6,271,075          

Net Position - Beginning 84,959,083     81,748,912     37,917,909     34,857,005     122,876,992     116,605,917     

     Prior period adjustment 1,533,298        -                    (1,583,184)      -                    (49,885)              -                      

Net Position - Ending 95,820,743$   84,959,083$   38,037,048$   37,917,909$   133,857,790$   122,876,992$   

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
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Governmental Activities – Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $9,328,361. Key ele-
ments affecting governmental activities net position are as follows: 

• General fund revenues posted 
$1,983,464 over expectations during fis-
cal year 2023. This is mainly due to an 
increase in sales tax and franchise tax. In 
addition, expenditures were also under 
expectations by $1,301,870. This was due 
to every department working diligently to 
maintain a slim budget during times of 
economic uncertainty and each one of 
them succeeding. 

 

• The Redevelopment Agency’s redevelop-
ment expenses were $3.32 million less 
than their revenues, resulting in a net in-
crease of $3.32 million in fund balance. 

 

• The Capital Projects Fund’s expenses 
were $2,890,948 less than budgeted due 
to project delays.  

 

• During fiscal year 2023, the City’s govern-
mental funds acquired $1,981,626 of cap-
ital assets. Work in progress assets to-
taled $102,790 at year-end. The most sig-
nificant projects completed during the 
year include $939,960 for sidewalks and 
$118,192 for roads and bridges. 

 
 
 
 
 

(This Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
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Business-Type Activities – Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $1,702,322, which rep-
resents a decrease of $1,358,582 over the previous year’s change. Key elements of the change in business-
type net position are as follows: 

• During fiscal year 2023, the City’s business-type 
activities acquired $37,989 in capital assets  and 
had $77,818 of projects in progress at year end.  

 
• The street lighting fund posted an increase in 

net position of $47,314. This is mainly due to 
lower than anticipated maintenance costs. 

 
• The sanitation fund experienced an increase in 

net position of $237,228, mainly due to its in-
vestment in the Trans Jordan Landfill.  

 
• The water fund contributed $472,419 to the 

increase in net position. The majority of this in-
crease is due to user water consumption being 
higher than anticipated and delays to water 
master plan projects. An additional decrease of 
$2,019,299 resulted from a prior period adjust-
ment (see notes to the financial statements for 
additional information).  

 
• The sewer fund contributed $233,476 to the 

increase in net position due to professional ser-
vices lower than anticipated and delays to mas-
ter plan projects.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental fund statements is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City’s financing requirements. In particular, assigned and unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 

As of June 30, 2023, The City’s governmental funds (General, Capital Projects, RDA, and Municipal Building 
Authority) reported combined fund balances of $33,712,141. This represents an increase of $7,742,425 from 
the previous year’s ending balance. This includes a $5,773,012 increase from operations and an additional 
increase of $1,969,413 from a prior period adjustment (see notes to the financial statements for additional 
information). $8,040,274 (23.8 percent) of the total fund balance constitutes unassigned fund balance and is 
therefore available for spending at the City’s discretion. Assigned fund balance totals $21,428,059 (63.7 per-
cent), meaning the City intends to use this amount for specific purposes (capital projects, redevelopment, 
and debt service). Fund balance of $4,243,808 (12.6 percent) is restricted to indicate it is not available for 
new spending because it has already been committed to pay for roads, development related expensed and 
debt service. 
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General Fund 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. All 
activities which are not required to be accounted for in sepa-
rate funds either by state or local ordinance or by a desire to 
maintain a matching of revenues and expenditures are ac-
counted for in this fund. Revenues exceeded expenditures 
(including other financing sources and uses) in the General 
Fund by $467,173 during the year. Taxes continue to be the 
largest source of revenue in the General Fund and represent 
75 percent of total General Fund revenues. The largest com-
ponent of tax revenue is sales tax, which represents 64.7 per-
cent of total tax revenues and 51.3 percent of total General 
Fund revenues. This compares with 52.1 percent of total gen-
eral fund revenues in the prior fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022. 
 
General fund expenditures increased during fiscal year 2023, going from $19,021,590 in 2022 to $19,463,396 
in 2023. This can mostly be attributed to increases in public safety costs.  

 

Other Governmental Funds 

Highlights from the City’s other governmental funds show indicators of a growing city and strong local econo-
my. During fiscal year 2023, property tax collections from redevelopment areas increased 9.6 percent to a 
total of $9,673,857 during the same period. This increase is due to an increase in taxable values. RDA fund 
balance increased $3,318,168 to a total of $16,097,813 (25.96 percent increase). The remaining fund balance 
will be used to support the City’s redevelopment project areas. 
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Fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund increased $2,154,201 during the fiscal year to an ending fund bal-
ance of $6,517,945. This is due to several large projects not starting or being completed in fiscal year 2023 
due to economic issues and increased transfers into the capital projects fund to prepare for large projects in 
coming years. 

Fund balance in the Municipal Building Authority Fund increased $27,380 during the fiscal year to an ending 
balance of $690,562. The Municipal Building Authority fund is a legally separate governmental unit that is 
used to collect lease revenue and make debt service payments on the City’s 2012 Lease Revenue Bonds and 
is reported in the financial statements as a blended component unit. The MBA Bonds have a debt service re-
serve of $606,944 constituting the majority of fund balance. 

Fund balance in the Debt Service Fund had a net change of $1,775,503. This includes a decrease of $193,910 
from regular operations and an additional increase of $1,969,413 from a prior period adjustment (see notes 
to the financial statements for additional information).  The debt service fund was created in fiscal year 2022. 
The fund balance is a result of interest income.  

 

Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the govern-
ment-wide financial statements, but in more detail. In summary, unrestricted net position decreased from 
$3,270,634 to $1,457,216 in the Water Fund; increased from $6,010,616 to $6,116,110 in the Sewer Fund; 
and increased from $1,444,246 to $1,558,728 in the Storm Water Fund. 
 
Water Fund unrestricted net position decreased by $1,813,418, this is mainly due to American Rescue Plan 
Act funds being reclassified as unearned revenue (see notes to the financial statements for additional infor-
mation).  
 
The net position increase in the Sewer Fund is largely due to an increase in the City’s investment in the South 
Valley Water Reclamation Facility (SVWRF).  
 
Finally, the net position increase in the storm water fund is largely due to revenues exceeding budgeted ex-
pectations. This is mainly due to an increase in equivalent residential units (ERU’s) billed. The City is also 
building reserves for future capital projects. 
 
The City’s nonmajor proprietary funds (street lighting, sanitation, and telecommunications) increased unre-
stricted net position from $2,285,559 in fiscal year 2022 to $2,867,459 in fiscal year 2023 (a $581,900 in-
crease). The Street Lighting fund realized a $47,314 increase in net position, largely due to maintenance costs 
being under budgeted expectations. The Sanitation Fund saw a $237,228 net position increase, largely due to 
a gain on the City’s equity investment in Trans Jordan Landfill. Finally, the Telecommunications Fund saw a 
$297,358 net position increase, mainly due to a change in accounting estimate related to a long-term receiv-
able and an  accompanying allowance for doubtful accounts.  
 
 
 
 
 

(The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

During the fiscal year, General Fund budgeted expenditures were amended from an original budget total of 
$20,552,318 to a final budget total of $20,765,266 (1 percent difference). All departments monitor their 
budgets closely and are required to stay within their allotment. Budget adjustments made during the year 
can be summarized as follows: 

•The City added funding for the Midvale City website redesign. 

•The City added funding to the Planning department for professional services related to  the planning of a 
future project. 

•The City added  funding for human resources software, community development software, and wireless 
networking software.  

General fund budgeted revenues were amended from $21,971,397 to $21,985,280 (an increase of $13,883). 
Highlights of this increase include: 

•The City amended budgeted proceeds from insurance from $0 to $13,883. 
 

During the year, actual revenues were greater than budgeted revenues by $1,983,464. Actual expenditures 
were less than budgeted expenditures by $1,301,870.  

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets – Midvale City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 
as of June 30, 2023, amounts to $152,860,483 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, water stock & rights, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, machinery & equipment, 
and construction in progress. The total decrease in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current year 
was 1.4 percent (a .75 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 3 percent decrease for business-
type activities). 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Land 65,065,740$   65,065,740$   115,062           115,062$         65,180,802$   65,180,802$   

Water Stock & Rights -                         -                         3,081,299        3,081,299        3,081,299        3,081,299        

Buildings 20,708,338      21,261,342      3,147,125        3,239,547        23,855,463      24,500,889      

Improvements 3,310,473        3,421,331        35,992,813      37,227,027      39,303,286      40,648,358      

Infrastructure 18,565,243      19,100,584      -                         -                         18,565,243      19,100,584      

Machinery & Equipment 2,452,217        2,167,529        241,564           239,231           2,693,781        2,406,760        

Construction in Progress 102,790           20,046              77,818              77,818              180,608           97,864              

TOTAL: 110,204,802$ 111,036,572$ 42,655,681$   43,979,984$   152,860,483$ 155,016,556$ 

TotalBusiness-Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

Midvale City

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

June 30, 2023
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Major capital asset events during fiscal year 2023 include the following: 
 

• $939,960 Sidewalk curb &gutter improvements. 
• $118,192 Pavement in various locations. 
• $31,738 Trash pump for sewer.  
• $524,876 Hydro excavator truck. 
• $102,120 Caterpillar backhoe Loader.  
• $17,003 Holiday lights for city hall. 

 
 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on page 65-67 of this report. 
 
 
Long-term debt - As of June 30, 2023, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $70,123,818. The City 
has no general obligation bonds outstanding. 

The City’s total debt outstanding decreased by $5,725,652 during the fiscal year (7.55 percent). This decrease 
is due to regular debt service payments.  

The City currently has no General Obligation debt. The most recent bond ratings issued for Midvale City in-
clude:  

• Series 2016 and 2018 Water, Sewer, and Storm Water Revenue Bonds, a Fitch rating of “AA-” (rating 
outlook: positive). 

• Series 2018 RDA Tax Increment and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, a Fitch rating of “AA” (rating outlook: 
stable). 

• Series 2017 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds a Fitch rating of “AA” (rating outlook: stable). 

• 2012 MBA Lease Revenue Bonds a Fitch rating of “AA-“ (rating outlook: stable). 

• Standalone Credit Profile (SCP) of “AA-“ (Fitch ratings). 

• Issuer Default Rating (IDR) of “AA” (Fitch ratings). 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Lease Revenue Bonds 5,155,000$      5,665,000$      -$                       -$                       5,155,000        5,665,000        

Tax Revenue Bonds 35,999,000      38,644,000      -                         -                         35,999,000      38,644,000      

Unamortized Bond Premiums 2,900,586        3,326,509        559,058           651,078           3,459,644        3,977,587        

Direct Borrowings 6,962,744        7,465,176        98,211              111,601           7,060,955        7,576,777        

Water, Sewer, Storm Water Revenue Bonds -                         -                         17,716,000      19,346,000      17,716,000      19,346,000      

Compensated Absences 499,827           431,568           233,392           208,538           733,219           640,106           

TOTAL: 51,517,157$   55,532,253$   18,606,661$   20,317,217$   70,123,818$   75,849,470$   

Midvale City

Outstanding Long-Term Bonded Debt

June 30, 2023

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
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State statutes limit the amount of General Obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 12 percent of 
the “reasonable fair cash value” of property within the City. Of this percent, a maximum of 4 percent may be 
used for general purposes. The current limitation for the City is $260,204,365 which is significantly in excess 
of the City’s outstanding General Obligation debt (the City has no General Obligation debt outstanding). The 
remaining 8 percent and any unused portion of the 4 percent available for general purposes, up to the maxi-
mum of 12 percent, may be utilized for water, sewer, and electrical projects. The current limitation for all 
debt, including that used for water, sewer and electrical projects is thus $780,613,095, which again signifi-
cantly exceeds the outstanding city-wide debt. 
 
The City has two direct borrowings in the form of loans from the Utah Department of Transportation State 
Infrastructure Bank. One was issued in 2021 for $2.1 million and one was issued during fiscal year 2022 for 
$5.5 million. Both loans are for parking structures and the payments are made via pass-through revenue paid 
to the City by developers. These loans are not for capital purposes.  
 
Additional information on the City’s long term-debt can be found on pages 71-76 of this report.  

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 

• The 2023 unemployment rate for the Midvale City was 2.7 percent. This compares with a national un-
employment rate of 3.6 percent. The 2022 unemployment rate for the Midvale City was 2.1 percent. 
(Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics.) 

 
• General Fund budgeted revenues for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 ($25,173,913) reflect an de-

crease of 1.2 percent over the final budgeted revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 
($25,470,980). In light of recent economic uncertainty the City anticipates very little to no growth in 
tax income. General Fund expenditures in fiscal year 2024 are budgeted $861,002 greater than fiscal 
year 2023. This increase is primarily due to an increase in public safety costs. 

 
• A 5-year water and sewer rate increase model was passed by the City Council to fund necessary capi-

tal needs of the water and sewer funds. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Midvale City’s finances for all those with an 
interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to:  Midvale City, Finance Department, 7505 S Holden 
St, Midvale City, UT  84047 or call (801) 567-7200, or e-mail mhill@midvale.com. 

mailto:mhill@midvale.com
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Midvale City  
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments:
Unrestricted 16,564,756$      3,579,872$     20,144,628$          

Restricted 15,204,224        5,334,061        20,538,285            

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Accounts and taxes 8,163,875          1,566,258        9,730,133              

Contracts -                       13,565             13,565                    

Court fines 226,344              -                    226,344                  

Due from other governments 722,836              -                    722,836                  

Inventory -                       378,673           378,673                  

Internal balances (526,772)            526,772           -                           

Prepaids and deposits 19,015                2,253                21,268                    

Total current assets 40,374,278        11,401,454     51,775,732            

Noncurrent assets:
Contracts receivable -                       89,815             89,815                    

Investment in Joint Ventures -                       6,936,234        6,936,234              

Note receivable 1,770,363          266,187           2,036,550              

Land held for resale 150,130              -                    150,130                  

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Water stock -                       3,081,299        3,081,299              

Land 65,065,740        115,062           65,180,802            

Construction in progress 102,790              77,818             180,608                  

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 20,708,338        3,147,125        23,855,463            

Improvements other than buildings 3,310,473          35,992,813     39,303,286            

Equipment 2,452,217          241,564           2,693,781              

Infrastructure 18,565,243        -                    18,565,243            

Total noncurrent assets 112,125,295      49,947,917     162,073,212          

Total assets 152,499,573      61,349,371     213,848,944          

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,016,420          371,988           1,388,408              

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,016,420$        371,988$         1,388,408$            
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Midvale City  
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

LIABILITIES
Current l iabilities:

Accounts payable 637,283$           528,571$         1,165,853$            

Accrued liabilites 307,314              103,855           411,169                  

Accrued interest payable 269,431              143,300           412,731                  

Compensated absences 306,605              165,506           472,111                  

Bonds and notes payable 3,787,149          1,652,000        5,439,149              

Unearned Revenue 105,000              4,038,597        4,143,597              

Total current l iabilities 5,412,782          6,631,829        12,044,610            

Noncurrent l iabilites:
Bonds and notes payable 47,230,181        16,721,269     63,951,450            

Compensated absences 193,220              67,886             261,106                  

Net pension liability 538,237              203,545           741,782                  

Deposits held 369,276              55,515             424,791                  

Total noncurrent l iabilities 48,330,914        17,048,215     65,379,129            

Total l iabilities 53,743,696        23,680,044     77,423,740            

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred revenue property taxes 3,940,271          -                    3,940,271              

Deferred inflows related to pensions, net 11,283                4,268                15,551                    

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,951,554          4,268                3,955,822              

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 65,982,979        24,215,298     90,198,277            
Restricted for:

Capital projects and redevelopment 14,833,673        1,295,464        16,129,137            

Road Funds 323,328              -                    323,328                  

Development-related funds 264,991              -                    264,991                  

Debt Service Funds 3,655,489          -                    3,655,489              

Unrestricted 10,760,283        12,526,285     23,286,568            

Total net position 95,820,743$      38,037,048$   133,857,790$       
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Midvale City  
Statement of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Net (Expense) Revenues
and Changes in Net Position

Function/Programs Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 

and 

Contributions

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Governmental activities
General government 4,725,479$        46,816$             206,628$           -$                    (4,472,035)$      -$                    (4,472,035)$      

Public safety 11,795,690        844,493             -                      -                      (10,951,196)      -                      (10,951,196)      

Highways and public improvements 3,824,707          -                      -                      3,330,730          (493,977)            -                      (493,977)            

Parks, recreation and public property 1,493,263          26,850                -                      -                      (1,466,413)         -                      (1,466,413)         

Redevelopment 2,180,096          -                      6,895,093          -                      4,714,997          -                      4,714,997          

Community development 1,292,623          1,289,229          -                      558,397             555,003             -                      555,003             

Interest and other fiscal charges 1,527,618          -                      -                      -                      (1,527,618)         -                      (1,527,618)         

Total governmental activities 26,839,475        2,207,388          7,101,721          3,889,127          (13,641,239)      -                      (13,641,239)      

Business-type activities

Water 5,710,183          6,034,039          -                      -                      -                      323,856             323,856             

Sewer 3,147,616          3,373,084          -                      -                      -                      225,468             225,468             

Storm water 1,864,144          2,183,691          -                      -                      -                      319,547             319,547             

Sanitation 1,312,855          1,354,000          -                      -                      -                      41,145                41,145                

Telecommunications 965,249             555,971             -                      -                      -                      (409,278)            (409,278)            

Street l ighting 366,150             408,126             -                      -                      -                      41,976                41,976                

Total business-type activities 13,366,197        13,908,911        -                      -                      -                      542,714             542,714             

General Revenues:
 

Property taxes 3,636,704          -                      3,636,704          

Sales taxes 12,306,587        -                      12,306,587        

Telecommunications and franchise taxes 3,669,110          -                      3,669,110          

Intergovernmental 2,176,718          -                      2,176,718          

Gain on sale of assets/equity investment income 7,722                  185,021             192,743             

Interest income 1,068,579          264,003             1,332,582          

Miscellaneous 814,765             -                      814,765             

Transfers:

Transfers - net (710,584)            710,584             -                      

Total general revenue and transfers 22,969,600        1,159,608          24,129,208        

Change in net position 9,328,361          1,702,322          11,030,683        

Net position - beginning 84,959,083        37,917,909        122,876,992     

Prior period adjustment, see notes 1,533,298          (1,583,184)         (49,885)              

Net position - ending 95,820,743$     38,037,048$     133,857,790$   

Program Revenues



 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Midvale City  
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Municipal Total

Debt Capital Redevelopment Building Governmental

General Service Projects Agency Authority Funds

ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments

Unrestricted 6,144,491$      3,482$              6,780,527$      12,949,107$    72,979$            25,950,586$    

Restricted 264,991            3,383                 105,000            1,264,140        617,603            2,255,117        

Receivables, net:

Accounts and other -                     -                     -                     1,787,278        -                     1,787,278        

Taxes 5,341,757        -                     182,175            852,665            -                     6,376,597        

Court fines 226,344            -                     -                     -                     -                     226,344            

Intergovernmental 722,836            -                     -                     -                     -                     722,836            

Due from developers -                     1,770,363        -                     -                     -                     1,770,363        

Deposits 10,647              -                     -                     -                     -                     10,647              

Prepaid assets 7,917                 -                     -                     294                    -                     8,211                 

Land held for resale -                     -                     -                     150,130            -                     150,130            

Total assets 12,718,983      1,777,228        7,067,702        17,003,614      690,582            39,258,109      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 151,994            -                     441,882            10,971              20                       604,867            

Deposits held 363,401            -                     2,875                 3,000                 -                     369,276            

Accrued liabilities 260,686            -                     -                     39,165              -                     299,851            

Uneanred revenue - grants -                     -                     105,000            -                     -                     105,000            

Total liabilities 776,081            -                     549,757            53,136              20                       1,378,994        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 3,087,606        -                     -                     852,665            -                     3,940,271        
Unavailable revenue - fines, fees, and other 226,703            -                     -                     -                     -                     226,703            

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,314,309        -                     -                     852,665            -                     4,166,974        

FUND BALANCES

Restricted for:

B&C road funds 323,328            -                     -                     -                     -                     323,328            

Development-related funds 264,991            -                     -                     -                     -                     264,991            

Debt service -                     1,773,746        -                     1,264,140        617,603            3,655,489        

Total restricted 588,319            1,773,746        -                     1,264,140        617,603            4,243,808        

Assigned to:  

Redevelopment -                     -                     -                     14,833,673      -                     14,833,673      

Capital projects -                     -                     6,517,945        -                     -                     6,517,945        

Debt service -                     3,482                 -                     -                     72,959              76,441              

Total assigned -                     3,482                 6,517,945        14,833,673      72,959              21,428,059      

Unassigned 8,040,274        -                     -                     -                     -                     8,040,274        

Total fund balances 8,628,593        1,777,228        6,517,945        16,097,813      690,562            33,712,141      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances 12,718,983$    1,777,228$      7,067,702$      17,003,614$    690,582$          39,258,109$    

Special Revenue
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Midvale City  
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet  
To the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net

Position are different because:

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 33,712,141$       

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore, are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is

$156,640,577 less the accumulated depreciation of $48,387,784. 108,252,793       

Interest on general obligation and lease revenue bonds is not accrued in

governmental funds but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. (269,431)              

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in

the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (51,496,514)        

Pension liabilities and assets are not due and payable in the current period

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 458,947               

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,

therefore, are either deferred or not applicable to funds. 226,703               

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet

management and IT management to individual funds. The assets and

liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities

in the Statement of Net Position. (526,772)              

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet

maintenance and computer equipment to individual funds. The assets and

liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities

in the Statement of Net Position. 5,462,876            

Net Position - Governmental Activities 95,820,743$       
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Midvale City  
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Municipal Total

Debt Capital Redevelopment Building Governmental
General Service Projects Agency Authority Funds

REVENUES
Taxes 17,986,216$     -$                    1,024,138$     777,223$             -$                  19,787,577$     
Licenses and permits 892,307              -                       -                    -                        -                    892,307             
Intergovernmental 3,537,359          -                       558,397           8,896,634            -                    12,992,390       
Charges for service 439,465              46,281                -                    -                        -                    485,746             
Fines and forfeitures 829,335              -                       -                    -                        -                    829,335             
Interest income 228,979              3,690                  164,898           510,512               25,150             933,229             
Lease Revenue -                       -                       -                    -                        680,419           680,419             
Miscellaneous 55,083                -                       -                    72,563                  -                    127,646             

Total revenues 23,968,744        49,971                1,747,433       10,256,932         705,569           36,728,649       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 3,996,344          374,961              -                    -                        -                    4,371,305         
Public safety 11,698,303        -                       -                    -                        -                    11,698,303       
Highways and public improvements 1,429,885          -                       -                    828,909               -                    2,258,794         
RDA Administration -                       -                       -                    1,759,038            -                    1,759,038         
Parks, recreation, and public property 1,046,241          -                       -                    -                        -                    1,046,241         
Redevelopment -                       -                       -                    421,693               -                    421,693             
Community development 1,292,623          -                       -                    -                        -                    1,292,623         

Total current expenditures 19,463,396        374,961              -                    3,009,640            -                    22,847,997       

Capital outlay:
Capital outlay -                       -                       1,580,832       -                        3,020                1,583,852         

Debt service:
Principal -                       1,027,432          -                    2,120,000            510,000           3,657,432         
Interest -                       444,031              -                    1,359,992            165,169           1,969,192         
Bond issuance costs -                       4,550                  -                    -                        -                    4,550                  

Total debt service -                       1,476,013          -                    3,479,992            675,169           5,631,174         

Total expenditures 19,463,396        1,850,974          1,580,832       6,489,632            678,189           30,063,023       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 4,505,348          (1,801,003)        166,601           3,767,300            27,380             6,665,626         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of assets 17,970                -                       -                    -                        -                    17,970               
Issuance of debt -                       -                       -                    -                        -                    -                      
Transfers in -                       1,607,093          1,987,600       -                        -                    3,594,693         
Transfers out (4,056,145)        -                       -                    (449,132)              -                    (4,505,277)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,038,175)        1,607,093          1,987,600       (449,132)              -                    (892,614)           

Net change in fund balance 467,173              (193,910)            2,154,201       3,318,168            27,380             5,773,012         

Fund balances at beginning of year 8,161,420          1,725                  4,363,744       12,779,645         663,182           25,969,716       

Prior period adjustment, see notes -                       1,969,413          -                    -                        -                    1,969,413         

Fund balances at end of year 8,628,593$        1,777,228$        6,517,945$     16,097,813$       690,562$         33,712,141$     

Special Revenue
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Midvale City  
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in  
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5,773,012$         

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures and do not

report capital contributions, as they are not financial assets. However, in

the statement of activities the cost of capital outlays is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense, and capital

contributions are reported as assets and revenue. This is the amount by

which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

(1,227,164)         

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current

financial resources to governmental funds, while the payment of the

principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of

governmental funds. Neither transactions, however, has any effect on net

position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,

discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these

amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This

amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-

term debt and related items. 4,038,231           

In the statement of activities, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is

reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale 

increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from

the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. (20,046)               

Some revenues in the statement of activities do not provide current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as revenues in

governmental funds. 473,061               

The net revenue of certain activities of the internal service funds are

reported with governmental activities. 74,770                 

The net revenue of certain activities of the Internal Service Fund is

reported with governmental activities. 209,798               

Change in net position of governmental activities 9,328,362$         
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Midvale City  
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance  
Budget and Actual - General Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

REVENUES
Taxes 16,599,930$     16,599,930$     17,986,216$         1,386,286$     
Licenses and permits 855,000             855,000             892,307                  37,307             
Intergovernmental 3,233,694          3,233,694          3,537,359              303,665           
Charges for services 377,520             377,520             439,465                  61,945             
Fines and forfeitures 888,000             888,000             829,335                  (58,665)           
Interest income 5,000                  5,000                  228,979                  223,979           
Miscellaneous 12,253                26,136                55,083                    28,947             

Total revenues 21,971,397       21,985,280       23,968,744            1,983,464       

EXPENDITURES
General government:

City council 247,442             247,442             225,872                  21,570             
Court 1,079,034          1,079,034          973,692                  105,342           
General administration 864,981             924,981             779,508                  145,473           
Information technology 603,623             626,623             532,840                  93,784             
Finance 355,737             360,737             337,210                  23,527             
Recorder 233,464             233,464             202,287                  31,177             
City attorney 592,196             607,196             561,919                  45,277             
Non-departmental 124,144             124,144             92,210                    31,934             
Community and intergovernmental services 345,672             363,672             269,877                  93,795             
Employee services 53,515                56,015                20,929                    35,086             

Public safety:
Police 11,703,309       11,703,309       11,698,303            5,006               

Highways and public improvements 1,518,741          1,550,741          1,429,886              120,856           
Parks, recreation and public property 1,288,048          1,302,931          1,046,241              256,691           
Community development 1,542,413          1,584,978          1,292,623              292,355           
Debt service: -                    

Interest -                      -                      -                           -                    

Total expenditures 20,552,318       20,765,266       19,463,396            1,301,870       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 1,419,079          1,220,014          4,505,348              3,285,334       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of assets 17,970                    17,970             
Transfers in 1,637,066          2,836,131          -                           (2,836,131)     
Transfers out (3,056,145)        (4,056,145)        (4,056,145)            -                    

Net change in fund balance -$                    -$                    467,173                  467,173$        

Fund balance at beginning of year 8,161,420              

Fund balance at end of year 8,628,593$            

Budgeted Amounts
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Midvale City  
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Redevelopment Agency 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

REVENUES

Taxes 772,200$            772,200$            777,223$            5,023$                 

Intergovernmental 7,007,200          7,007,200          6,895,093           (112,107)             

Charges for service 2,134,655          2,134,655          2,074,104           (60,551)               

Interest income 55,000                55,000                510,512               455,512               

Total revenues 9,969,055          9,969,055          10,256,932         287,877               

EXPENDITURES

Redevelopment 1,427,600          1,427,600          421,693               1,005,907           

Administration 4,402,647          4,402,647          1,759,038           2,643,609           

Highways and public improvements 2,957,000          2,957,000          828,909               2,128,091           

Debt service

Principal 2,120,000          2,120,000          2,120,000           -                        

Interest 1,359,992          1,359,992          1,359,992           -                        

Bond issuance costs -                       -                       -                        -                        

Total expenditures 12,267,239        12,267,239        6,489,632           5,777,607           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (2,298,184)         (2,298,184)         3,767,300           6,065,484           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 3,661,246          3,661,246          -                        (3,661,246)         

Transfers out (2,824,370)         (2,824,370)         (449,132)             2,375,238           

Total other financing sources (uses) 836,876              836,876              (449,132)             (1,286,008)         

Net change in fund balance (1,461,308)$      (1,461,308)$      3,318,168           4,779,476$         

Fund balance at beginning of year 12,779,645         

Fund balance at end of year 16,097,813$      

Budgeted Amounts
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Midvale City  
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Municipal Building Authority 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

REVENUES

Lease and other revenue 680,269$            680,269$            680,419$            150$                     

Interest income 1,000                   1,000                   25,150                 24,150                 

Total revenues 681,269              681,269              705,569               24,300                 

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 6,100                   6,100                   3,020                   3,080                   

Debt service

Principal 510,000              510,000              510,000               -                        

Interest 165,169              165,169              165,169               -                        

Total expenditures 681,269              681,269              678,189               3,080                   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures -                       -                       27,380                 27,380                 

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     27,380                 27,380$               

Fund balance at beginning of year 663,182               

Fund balance at end of year 690,562$            

Budgeted Amounts



 

 

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Midvale City  
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Other Activities

Proprietary Internal

Water Sewer Storm Water Funds Total  Service Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments

Unrestricted 612,288$        1,065,944$     1,397,187$        504,453$     3,579,872$     3,563,276$    

Restricted (bond) 1,022,752       272,628          84                        -                1,295,464       -                   

Restricted (Federal Grant) 4,038,597       -                   -                      -                4,038,597       -                   

Receivables:

Accounts, net 776,939          385,380          217,475             186,464       1,566,258       -                   

Contracts -                   -                   -                      13,565         13,565             -                   

Inventory 378,673          -                   -                      -                378,673          -                   

Prepaid assets 731                  623                  865                     34                 2,253               157                  

Total current assets 6,829,980       1,724,575       1,615,611          704,516       10,874,682     3,563,433       

Noncurrent assets:

Contracts receivable -                   -                   -                      89,815         89,815             -                   

Investment in Joint Venture -

South Valley Water Reclamation -                   4,910,761       -                      -                4,910,761       -                   

Investment in Joint Venture - 

Jordan Cities Landfil l -                   -                   -                      2,025,473    2,025,473       -                   

Notes receivable, less allowance

for doubtful accounts -                   -                   -                      266,187       266,187          -                   

Capital assets:

Land 115,062          -                   -                      -                115,062          -                   

Water stock 3,081,299       -                   -                      -                3,081,299       -                   

Construction in progress 77,818             -                   -                      -                77,818             -                   

Buildings, net 1,552,369       -                   1,594,756          -                3,147,125       -                   

Improvements, net 27,596,004     3,888,417       4,508,392          -                35,992,813     -                   

Automobiles, net -                   -                   -                      -                -                   1,172,693       

Machinery and equipment, net 46,865             193,330          1,369                  -                241,564          779,316          

Total noncurrent assets 32,469,417     8,992,508       6,104,517          2,381,475    49,947,917     1,952,009       

Total assets 39,299,397     10,717,083     7,720,128          3,085,991    60,822,599     5,515,442       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions 145,790          79,560             137,729             8,909            371,988          20,146            

Total deferred outflows of resources 145,790$        79,560$          137,729$           8,909$         371,988$        20,146$          

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Midvale City  
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds (Continued) 
June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Other Activities

Proprietary Internal

Water Sewer Storm Water Funds Total  Service Funds

LIABILITIES

Current l iabilities:

Accounts payable 243,875$        163,632$        4,379$                116,685$     528,571$        32,417$          

Accrued liabilities 40,120             25,730             30,934                7,071            103,855          7,463               

Compensated absences 60,371             45,071             57,544                2,520            165,506          18,072            

Accrued interest payable 103,673          30,980             8,647                  -                143,300          -                   

Unearned Revenue 4,038,597       -                   -                      -                4,038,597       -                   

Bonds payable 1,053,800       216,200          382,000             -                1,652,000       -                   

Total current l iabilities 5,540,436       481,613          483,504             126,276       6,631,829       57,952            

Noncurrent l iabilities:

Compensated absences 28,134             7,271               32,481                -                67,886             2,564               

Deposits held 55,515             -                   -                      -                55,515             -                   

Notes payable -                   -                   -                      98,211         98,211             -                   

Bonds payable 11,303,061     3,122,997       2,197,000          -                16,623,058     -                   

Net pension liability 78,926             55,337             66,389                2,893            203,545          11,943            

Total noncurrent l iabilities 11,465,636     3,185,605       2,295,870          101,104       17,048,215     14,507            

Total l iabilities 17,006,072     3,667,218       2,779,374          227,380       23,680,044     72,459            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 1,655               1,160               1,392                  61                 4,268               250                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,655               1,160               1,392                  61                 4,268               250                  

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 19,957,492     739,527          3,518,279          -                24,215,298     1,952,009       

Restricted:

Capital Improvements 1,022,752       272,628          84                        -                1,295,464       -                   

Unrestricted 1,457,216       6,116,110       1,558,728          2,867,459    11,999,513     3,510,870       

Total net position 22,437,461$  7,128,265$     5,077,091          2,867,459$ 37,510,276$  5,462,879$    

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Midvale City  
Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds to the Statement of Net 
Position  
June 30, 2023 

Total net position for proprietary funds 37,510,276$        

Internal Service fund allocation for prior year 436,115                

Internal Service fund allocation for current year 90,657                  

Total business-type net position 38,037,048$        

(The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
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Midvale City  
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Other Activities

Proprietary Internal Service

Water Sewer Storm Water Funds Total Funds

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 5,942,291$         3,354,249$         2,089,771$     1,774,993$    13,161,304$      1,253,569$         

Connection fees 30,864                 1,400                   -                   -                  32,264                -                       

Other 60,884                 17,435                 93,920             543,104         715,343              6,700                   

Total operating revenues 6,034,039           3,373,084           2,183,691       2,318,097      13,908,911        1,260,269           

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 717,807              503,563              603,750          25,974            1,851,094          136,882              

Employee benefits 297,849              242,421              288,991          9,410              838,671              52,860                 

Administration 915,678              618,966              578,588          372,869         2,486,101          243,060              

Supplies 2,854                   -                       -                   -                  2,854                  99,829                 

Repairs and maintenance 563,105              146,646              184,092          -                  893,843              142,053              

Waste disposal -                       -                       -                   1,185,445      1,185,445          -                       

Purchase/treatment:

Water 1,963,600           -                       -                   -                  1,963,600          -                       

Sewer -                       1,405,093           -                   -                  1,405,093          -                       

Street l ighting -                       -                       -                   85,307            85,307                -                       

Telecommunications -                       -                       -                   965,249         965,249              -                       

Depreciation 1,014,695           134,975              212,623          -                  1,362,293          413,458              

Total operating expenses 5,475,588           3,051,664           1,868,044       2,644,254      13,039,550        1,088,142           

Operating income (loss) 558,451              321,420              315,647          (326,157)        869,361              172,127              

NONOPERATING 

REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 176,806              30,109                 44,636             12,452            264,003              135,350              

Interest expense (262,838)             (118,053)             (36,413)           -                  (417,304)            -                       

Gain on equity investment -                       -                       -                   185,021         185,021              -                       

Gain on disposal of equipment -                       -                       -                   -                  -                       9,798                   

Total nonoperating revenues 

(expenses) (86,032)               (87,944)               8,223               197,473         31,720                145,148              

Income before transfers 472,419              233,476              323,870          (128,684)        901,081              317,275              

Transfers in -                       -                       -                   710,584         710,584              200,000              

Change in net position 472,419              233,476              323,870          581,900         1,611,665          517,275              

Total net position - beginning 23,984,340         6,894,789           4,753,221       2,285,559      37,917,909        4,945,604           

Prior period adjustment, see notes (2,019,299)          -                       -                   -                  (2,019,299)         -                       

Total net position - ending 22,437,461$      7,128,265$         5,077,091$     2,867,459$    37,510,276$      5,462,879$         

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Midvale City  
Reconciliation of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds to 
the Statement of Activities  
June 30, 2023 

Total changes in net position of properietary funds 1,611,665$        

Internal Service fund allocation for current year 90,657                

Total business-type net position 1,702,322$        

(The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
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Midvale City  
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Other Activities

Proprietary Internal

Water Sewer Storm Water Funds Total Service Funds

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers 8,043,851$  3,344,527$ 2,175,899$  2,317,596$    15,881,873$ 1,446,198$    

Payments to suppliers (2,739,836)   (1,678,418)  (360,990)      (2,517,897)     (7,297,141)     (290,800)         

Payments for interfund services (651,862)      (341,000)      (407,473)      -                   (1,400,335)     (243,059)         

Payments to employees (1,068,359)   (750,155)      (914,279)      (37,784)           (2,770,577)     (194,111)         

Other operating revenues (expenses) -                 -                -                 -                   -                  -                   

Net cash provided (used) by

operating activities 3,583,794    574,954       493,157        (238,085)        4,413,820      718,228          

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 

Decrease in contracts receivable -                 -                -                 13,080            13,080            -                   

Decrease in notes receivable -                 -                -                 (295,604)        (295,604)        -                   

Transfers (to) from other funds -                 -                -                 710,584          710,584         200,000          

Net cash provided (used) by

noncapital financing activities -                 -                -                 428,060          428,060         200,000          

Cash flows from capital and related

financing activities

Purchase of capital assets 5,059            (31,738)        -                 -                   (26,679)          (871,364)         

Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                 -                -                 -                   -                  76,748            

Principal paid on capital debt (1,071,585)   (227,997)      (429,170)      (13,390)           (1,742,142)     -                   

Interest and fees paid on capital debt (276,898)      (118,816)      (37,853)         -                   (433,567)        -                   

Net cash provided (used) by capital

and related financing activities (1,343,424)   (378,551)      (467,023)      (13,390)           (2,202,388)     (794,616)         

Cash flows from investing activites

Interest received 176,806        30,109         44,636          12,452            264,003         135,350          

Net cash provided by investing activities 176,806        30,109         44,636          12,452            264,003         135,350          

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents 2,417,176    226,512       70,770          189,037          2,903,495      258,962          

Cash and cash equivalents,

beginning of year 3,256,461    1,112,062    1,326,503    315,416          6,010,442      3,304,317       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 5,673,637$  1,338,574$ 1,397,273$  504,453$       8,913,937$    3,563,279$    

Unrestricted cash 612,288        1,065,944    1,397,187    504,453          3,579,872      3,563,277       

Restricted cash 5,061,349    272,628       84                  -                   5,334,061      -                   

5,673,637$  1,338,572$ 1,397,271$  504,453$       8,913,933$    3,563,277$    

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Midvale City  
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

Governmental 

Other Activities

Proprietary Internal

Water Sewer Storm Water Funds Total Service Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss) 558,451$     321,420$     315,647$     (326,157)$      869,361$       172,127$        

Adjustments to reconcile operating

income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation 1,014,695    134,975       212,623        -                   1,362,293      413,458          

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (9,487)           (36,409)        (7,792)           (7,471)             (61,159)          183,839          

Inventory 79,970          -                -                 -                   79,970            -                   

Deposits 13,303          7,852            13,372          79,655            114,182         2,087               

Contracts receivable -                 -                -                 1,015              1,015              -                   

Accounts payable (24,587)         147,851       (5,783)           11,318            128,799         (48,914)           

Accrued liabilities (67,850)         (735)              (34,910)         3,555              (99,940)          (4,369)             

Unearned Revenue 2,019,299    -                -                 -                   2,019,299      -                   

Net cash provided (used) by

operating activities 3,583,794$  574,954$     493,157$     (238,085)$      4,413,820$    718,228$        

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Reporting Entity 

The basic financial statements of Midvale City Corporation (“the City”) have been prepared in con-
formity with accounting principles (GAAP) generally accepted in the United States of America as appli-
cable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles. 

Midvale City Corporation was incorporated in 1909. The City operates under a Mayor/Council form of 
government. As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City and its component 
units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The City is considered to 
be financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of that organiza-
tion or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose spe-
cific financial burdens on the City. The City is also considered to be financially accountable for an or-
ganization if that organization is fiscally dependent (i.e., it is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set 
rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval from the City). The component units dis-
cussed below are included as part of the City’s reporting entity as blended component units. 

 

Component Units 

The Midvale City Redevelopment Agency (RDA) was established to prepare and carry out plans to im-
prove, rehabilitate, and redevelop blighted areas within the City. The RDA is governed by a board of 
trustees composed of the City Mayor and members of the City Council. Although it is a legally sepa-
rate entity from the City, the RDA is reported as if it were part of the primary government because of 
the City’s ability to impose its will upon the operations of the RDA. The RDA is included in these finan-
cial statements as the Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial statements 
are not issued for the RDA. 

The Midvale City Municipal Building Authority (MBA) was established to finance and construct munici-
pal buildings that are then leased to the City. The MBA is governed by a five-member board of trus-
tees composed of the City Council. Although it is a legally separate entity from the City, the MBA is 
reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the City’s ability to impose its will 
upon the operations of the MBA. The MBA is included in these financial statements as the Municipal 
Building Authority Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for the MBA.  

 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the City and its component units. For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmen-
tal activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for sup-
port. 

Midvale City  
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 
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Midvale City  
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those which are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) Charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function 
or segment and 2) Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate col-
umns in the fund financial statements. 

 

 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
the provider have been met. 

The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-
wide financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are 
recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as an other financing 
source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt of the City are reported as a reduction of the related 
liability, rather than an expenditure in the government-wide financial statements. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measure-
ment focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are 
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expendi-
tures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judg-
ments, are recorded only when payment is due. Governmental funds do not report donated capital 
assets received unless the sale of those assets is imminent. The assets are reported in the government
-wide financial statements. 

Sales taxes, use taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state and federal grants associ-
ated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes are measurable as of the date lev-
ied (assessed) and are recognized as revenues when they become available. Available means when 
due, or past due, and received within the current period or collected soon enough thereafter (within 
60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Justice Court fines assessed prior to year-
end and collected within 60 days are recognized as revenues in the current period. All other revenues 
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 
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Midvale City  
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 

 The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial re-
sources of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of the major capital facilities of the government (other than those financed by enter-
prise or internal service funds). 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the financial resources to be used for long-term debt and in-
terest for Midvale City (not including debt issued by the RDA, MBA, or enterprise funds). 

The Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund is used to account for financial resources legally 
restricted to be used for the revitalization of blighted areas within the City. The primary revenue 
source for the Redevelopment Agency is tax increment revenues from Midvale City and other par-
ticipating taxing entities. Tax increment financing is a tool used to promote economic develop-
ment by earmarking property tax revenue from increases in assessed values within a designated 
project area. The Redevelopment Agency is a legally separate entity and is being included in the 
financial statements as a blended component unit. 

The Municipal Building Authority Special Revenue Fund is used to account for financial resources 
legally restricted to be used for the design and construction of capital assets for the benefit of the 
City. The primary revenue source for the Municipal Building Authority is lease revenue from the 
users of those assets. Midvale City is the major tenant as the lessee of City Hall and the Justice 
Court. The Municipal Building Authority is a legally separate entity being included in the financial 
statements as a blended component unit. The Municipal Building Authority Fund is the only fund 
of this blended component unit.  

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Water Fund and Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water distribution system 
and sewer operations. The activities of the water and sewer operations are reported separately in 
this financial report. 

The Storm Water Utility Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s storm water operations. 

 Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds account for services provided to other departments or agencies of the gov-
ernment on a cost reimbursement basis. Midvale City operates two Internal Service Funds; Fleet 
Management and Information Technology Services. 

The Street Lighting Fund (proprietary fund) accounts for the activities of the City’s street lighting 
services. The Telecommunications Fund (proprietary fund) accounts for the activities of the City’s 
UTOPIA operations. The Sanitation Fund (proprietary fund) accounts for the activities of the City’s 
sanitation collection operations. 

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions are charges for the City’s water, sewer, and storm water services to the vari-
ous other departments of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and  
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program revenues reported for various functions concerned. Proprietary funds distinguish operating 
revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result 
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s 
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of all enterprise funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds includes the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents are generally considered short term, highly liquid investments with a ma-
turity of three months or less from the purchase date. 

Investments are recorded at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Meas-
urement, and Application. Accordingly, the change in fair value of investments is recognized as an in-
crease or decrease to investment assets and investment income. 

 

Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to or due from other funds”. 

Other receivables at June 30, 2023 consist of property tax, franchise tax, sales tax, grants, fines, and 
accounts (billings for user charged services, including unbilled utility services). Taxes, grants and fines 
are deemed collectible in full. The allowance for doubtful proprietary account receivables at June 30, 
2023 is $25,343. 

 

Inventory 

Inventory represents mainly supplies and parts used for various water fund projects. Inventories of 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than purchased 
(consumption method). Inventory is valued using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method at cost in govern-
mental funds, and otherwise at the lower of cost or market. 

 

 Prepaid Items 

 Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Midvale uses the consumption 
method for treatment of prepaid items.   
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Capital Assets 

 Capital assets, which include land, buildings, infrastructure and equipment, are reported in the gov-
ernment-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets, do-
nated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement 
are recorded at estimated acquisition value as of the date of donation. The costs of normal mainte-
nance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not 
capitalized. 

Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following esti-
mated useful lives: 

 

 

 

 

 

Compensated Absences 

For governmental funds amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave and comp time that are 
not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as liabilities 
in the government-wide statement of net assets and as expenses in the government-wide statement 
of activities. No expenditures are reported for these amounts in the fund financial statements. Vested 
or accumulated vacation leave and comp time of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and a 
liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to the employees and are thus recorded in both the gov-
ernment-wide financial statements and the individual fund financial statements. Sick pay amounts are 
charged to expenditures when incurred. At the end of the first full pay period in January, 50% of ac-
crued sick leave in excess of 480 hours will be contributed to the employee’s retirement health sav-
ings plan. After this contribution, employees may convert 25 percent of remaining accrued sick leave 
in excess of 240 hours to vacation leave. Employees may carry a maximum of 240 hours of vacation 
leave forward to the next calendar year; the balance of unused vacation leave is forfeited. Unused 
vacation leave and comp time is paid to the employee upon termination. For governmental funds, any 
compensated absence liability has typically been liquidated by the General Fund. 

 

 

Buildings 25 to 50 years

Infrastructure 10 to 40 years

Improvements other than buildings 20 to 30 years

Machinery and equipment 5 to 30 years
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and 
is therefore deferred until that time. 

Governmental funds report revenue that is unavailable as deferred inflows of resources. Governmen-
tal funds report unavailable revenue from property taxes, federal grants, court fines, and code en-
forcement liens. These amounts are deferred and recognized as revenue in the period that the 
amounts become available. 

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future periods 
and is therefore deferred until that time. As of June 30, 2023 the recorded deferred outflows and in-
flows of resources were related to pensions, with additional deferred inflows originating from RDA ac-
tivities and property taxes.  

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial state-
ments, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable gov-
ernmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond 
premiums, and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the applicable debt. In the fund 
financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued and bond premiums 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other fi-
nancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are re-
ported as debt service expenditures. 

 

Fund Balance 

Governmental fund balance is reported in five separate categories: Nonspendable, restricted, com-
mitted, assigned, and unassigned. When both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available for 
use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted fund balance first. When expenditures qualify for more than 
one unrestricted fund balance classification, it is the City’s policy to use resources in the following or-
der: committed, assigned, and then unassigned. 

Nonspendable fund balance cannot be spent because it is not in spendable form, for example, inven-
tory. Restricted fund balance has restrictions imposed by parties outside of the primary government. 
Committed fund balance represents funds restricted for a specific use by resolution of the Midvale City 
Council. Assigned fund balance is earmarked for certain purposes without formal resolution of the City 
Council and remaining positive fund balances for other governmental funds. There is currently no body 
or official authorized by the City to assign fund balance. This category also includes fund balance ap-
propriated in the subsequent year’s budget through City Council resolution. Finally, any remaining 
fund balance is unassigned and available for unrestricted use. 

The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount and it is in-
appropriate to do so in other governmental funds. However, in governmental funds other than the 
general fund, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund 
balance in that fund.  
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Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets are comprised of cash restricted for future payments of principal and interest on 
debt service as well as unexpended portions of bonds issued for capital construction purposes. When 
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and  deferred in-
flows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net po-
sition of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions from URS's fi-
duciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  

The general fund is typically used to liquidate pension/OPEB liabilities.  

Investments are reported at fair value.  

 

Taxes 

In Utah, county governments assess, levy, collect, and disburse two principal types of tax: 1) Personal 
property tax, which is assessed on business assets other than real estate, and 2) tax on real estate and 
improvements. Business personal property and real estate taxes attach as an enforceable lien on 
property as of January 1st. Taxes are levied on all business personal property on January 1st, and real 
estate and improvement taxes are levied on January 1st and are payable by November 30th. The real 
property taxes that are due in November are reported as a receivable from property taxes on the fi-
nancial statements. Because these taxes are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the cur-
rent period, they are offset by a deferred inflow. 

The City Council is authorized by state statute to levy a tax against all real and personal property lo-
cated within its boundaries. The Council must set a tax rate by June 22nd each year. The County Treas-
urer, acting as a tax collector, must settle and disburse all tax collections to all taxing entities on a reg-
ular basis. 
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2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Govern-
ment-Wide Statement of Net Position 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund bal-
ances and net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of 
net position. This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of 
net assets versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. 

 

Capital related items:     

When capital assets (property, plant and equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities 
are purchased or constructed, the cost of those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. However, the statement of net position includes those capital assets among the assets of the 
City as a whole.    

 

 

 

 

 

Long-term debt transactions: 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in the 
current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities in the fund financials. All liabilities 
(both current and long-term) are reported in the statement of net position. Balances at June 30, 2023 
were: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Lease revenue bonds 5,155,000$          

Tax revenue bonds 35,999,000          

Direct Borrowings 6,962,744            

Bond issuance premiums 2,900,586            

Compensated absences 479,191                

Total difference 51,496,521$        

Cost of capital assets 156,640,577$     

Accumulated depreciation (48,387,784)         

Total difference 108,252,793$     
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Explanation of Certain Differences between Governmental Fund Operating Statements and the State-
ment of Activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net 
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. The first 
element of this reconciliation states that capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as 
expenditures while the government-wide statement of activities allocates these costs over the useful 
lives of the assets as depreciation. While shown in the reconciliation as the net difference, the ele-
ments of this difference are as follow: 
    

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 

Capital outlay 1,209,803$          

Depreciation expense (2,436,967)           

Net difference, as reported (1,227,164)$         
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3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budgetary Information 

On or before the first regularly scheduled Council meeting in May, the City Manager (as the Budget 
Officer) submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the 
following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the proposed sources of 
revenues. 
 
Between May 1 and June 30, the City Council reviews and adjusts the proposed budget. On or before 
June 30, a public hearing is held and the budget is legally adopted through passage of a resolution. If a 
property tax increase is anticipated, adoption of the budget is delayed until August in order to comply 
with the state’s truth-in-taxation requirements. 
 
After the budget is adopted, the City Manager may transfer any unencumbered or unexpended ap-
propriation amount from one expenditure account to another within a department. The City  
Council may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered or unexpended appropriation amount from 
one department in a fund to another department within the same fund.  
 
When the City Council determines that an emergency exists, such as widespread damage from fire, 
flood, or earthquake, the Mayor’s declaration of an emergency allows for necessary spending for im-
mediate needs. 
 
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. In the General Fund, budgets are 
adopted at the functional level and budgetary control is exercised at the departmental level. 
 
In special Revenue Funds, budgets are adopted, and control is exercised at the level of total expendi-
tures for each individual fund. For Capital Projects Funds, budgets are adopted, and control is exer-
cised at the project level. 
 
Annual budgets for the General Fund, all Special Revenue Funds, and all Capital Projects Funds are 
legally adopted by the City and are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Encumbrances (commitments related to unperformed purchase orders or contracts for goods or ser-
vices) are used only as an internal management control device during the year. The City does not have 
any encumbrances outstanding at year end since appropriations lapse at year end. However, encum-
bered amounts are generally re-appropriated and honored as part of the following year’s budget. 
 
Although Utah State law requires the initial preparation of budgets for all City funds (both govern-
mental and proprietary), it only requires the reporting of actual versus such budgets for governmental 
funds. 
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4. DETAILED NOTES FOR ALL FUNDS 

Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may 
not be recovered. The City does not have a formal deposit policy for bank deposit custodial credit risk. 
The City’s policy for managing custodial credit risk is to adhere to the Utah Money Management Act. 
The Act requires all deposits of the City to be in a qualified depository, defined as any financial institu-
tion whose deposits are insured by an agency of the federal government and which has been certified 
by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to 
the rules of the Council. At times during the year, the City’s bank balances may have exceeded the 
insured levels under FDIC guidelines. As of June 30, 2023, $1,455,376 of the City’s bank balances of 
$1,705,376 were uninsured and uncollateralized. 

 

Investments 

The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State Treasurer 
about investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in strengthening the banking 
and credit structure of the State, and review the rules adopted under the authority of the State of 
Utah Money Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public funds. 
 
The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 
7) in handling its depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the depositing of funds in a 
qualified depository. The Act defines a qualified depository as any financial institution whose deposits 
are insured by an agency of the Federal Government and which has been certified by the State Com-
missioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of 
the Utah Money Management Council. 
 
The Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the City’s funds and 
the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only 
through qualified depositories, certified dealers, certified investment advisors, or directly with issuers 
of the investment securities.  
 
Statutes authorize the City to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified depositories 
and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial 
paper that is classified as “first-tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; 
bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the United States Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obli-
gations, other than mortgage derivative products, issued by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises 
(U.S. Agencies) such as the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corpora-
tion (Freddie Mac), and Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other 
evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed-rate corporate obligations and 
variable rate securities rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally rec-
ognized statistical rating organizations; shares or certificates in a money market mutual fund as de-
fined in the Money Management Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.   
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The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF). The PTIF is 
available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not registered with 
the SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management 
Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7). The Act established the Money Management Council, which 
oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF and details the types of authorized invest-
ments. Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and partici-
pants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. 
 
The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and loss-
es of the PTIF, net of administration fees, are allocated based upon the participant’s average daily bal-
ance. The fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of the pool 
shares.  

 

 Fair Value of Investments 

The City measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines established 
by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hier-
archy as follows:  

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the City can access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly 
available in an active market, the valuation of these securities does not entail any significant 
degree of judgement. Securities classified as Level 1 inputs include U.S. Government securities 
and other U.S. Agency and sovereign government obligations. 

Level 2: Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all signifi-
cant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Securities classified as Level 2 include 
corporate and municipal bonds, and “brokered” or securitized certificates of deposit. 

Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value 
measurement. 

 On June 30, 2023, the City had the following recurring fair value measurements: 

 

Debt and equity securities classified as Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for 
 those securities. 

Security Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Other Total

PTIF -$                 34,402,196$         -$                                        -$                 34,402,196$        

CD -                   3,396,682             -                                          -                   3,396,682            

Corporate -                   749,523                 -                                          -                   749,523                

US Treasury 69,358            -                          -                                          -                   69,358                  

Money Market Funds 800,607          -                          -                                          -                   800,607                

International Sweep 1,264,546      -                          -                                          -                   1,264,546            

2,134,512$    38,548,401$         -$                                        -$                 40,682,913$        
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 For securities that generally have market prices from multiple sources, it can be challenging to select 
the best individual price, and the best source one day may not be the best source on the following 
day. The solution is to report a “consensus price” or a weighted average price for each security. The 
City receives market prices for these securities from a variety of industry-standard data providers 
(e.g., Bloomberg), security master files from large financial institutions, and other third-party sources. 
Through the help of an investment advisor, the City uses these multiple prices as inputs into a distri-
bution-curve based algorithm to determine the daily fair value. For U.S. Treasuries, Money Markets, 
and U.S. Agencies, the City uses quoted prices for identical securities in markets that are active. 

 
 Debt securities classified in Level 2 are valued using the following approaches: 

• Corporate and Municipal Bonds and Commercial Paper: Quoted prices for similar securities in 
active markets. 

• Repurchase Agreements, Negotiable Certificates of Deposit, and Collateralized Debt Obliga-
tions: Matrix pricing based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices. 

• Bond Mutual Funds: Published fair value per share (unit) for each fund. 

• Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund:  Application of the June 30, 2023, fair value factor, 
as calculated by the Utah State Treasurer, to the City’s average daily balance in the fund. 

• Donated Real Estate: recent appraisals of the real estate’s value. 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an in-
vestment. The City’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest 
rates is to comply with the Money Management Act. Section 51-7-11 of the Money Management Act 
requires that the remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of availability 
of the funds to be invested. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all investments 
in commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, fixed-rate negotiable certificates of deposits, and fixed-
rate corporate obligations to 270 days-15 months or less. The Act further limits the remaining term to 
maturity on all investments in obligations of the United States Treasury, obligations issued by U.S. 
government-sponsored enterprises, and bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political 
subdivisions of the State to 5 years. In addition, variable rate corporate note securities may not have a 
remaining term to final maturity exceeding three years. 
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As of June 30, 2023, the City’s investments had the following maturities: 

 

 Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obliga-
tions. The City’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the Money Manage-
ment Act, as previously discussed. 
 
At June 30, 2023, the City’s investments had the following quality ratings: 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s in-
vestment in a single issuer. The City’s policy for reducing this risk of loss is to comply with the Rules of 
the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council limits investments in a 
single issuer of commercial paper and corporate obligations to 5-10 percent, depending upon the to-
tal dollar amount held in the portfolio. 
 
On June 30, 2023, the City does not hold more than 5 percent of total investments in any single secu-
rity concentration. 

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 More than 10

PTIF 34,402,196$  34,402,196$         -$                                        -$                 -$                       

CD 3,396,682      622,129                 2,774,554                              -                   -                         

Corporate 749,523          149,467                 600,056                                 -                   -                         

US Treasury 69,358            -                          69,358                                    -                   -                         

Money Market Funds 800,607          800,607                 -                                          -                   -                         

International Sweep 1,264,546      1,264,546             -                                          -                   -                         

40,682,913$  37,238,946$         3,443,967$                           -$                 -$                       

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value AAA AA+  to AA- A+ to A- BBB+ to BBB- Unrated

PTIF 34,402,196$  -$                        -$                                        -$                 -$                       34,402,196$        

CD 3,396,682      -                          384,144                                 709,088          133,142                2,170,309            

Corporate 749,523          -                          246,465                                 503,057          -                         -                         

US Treasury 69,358            69,358                   -                                          -                   -                         -                         

Money Market Funds 800,607          291,868                 -                                          -                   -                         508,739                

International Sweep 1,264,546      -                          -                                          -                   -                         1,264,546            

40,682,913$  361,227$               630,609$                               1,212,145$    133,142$              38,345,790$        

S&P Rating
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Custodial Credit Risk 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in pos-
session of an outside party. Midvale City does have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. All invest-
ments, other than bank deposits or funds invested in the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund, are to 
be held by a third party with securities delivered on delivery versus purchase basis.  As of June 30, 
2023, Midvale City safe-kept all investments with custodian counterparty Moreton Asset Manage-
ment, LLC, and all investments which was/were held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent 
are registered in the City’s name.    

 

Receivables 

Receivables as of June 30, 2023, for the City’s individual major funds and non-major funds, in the ag-
gregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

 

Governmental Funds

General Debt Service Capital Projects RDA Internal Service Total

Receivables:

Taxes 5,341,757$       -$                   182,175$          852,665$           -$                   6,376,597$       

Accounts and other -                     1,770,363         -                     1,787,278          -                     3,557,641         

Court fines 226,344            -                     -                     -                       -                     226,344            

Intergovernmental 722,836            -                     -                     -                       -                     722,836            

Gross receivables 6,290,938         1,770,363         182,175            2,639,943          -                     10,883,419       

Less:  allowance for

uncollectibles -                     -                     -                     -                       -                     -                     

Net total receivables 6,290,938$       1,770,363$       182,175$          2,639,943$        -$                   10,883,419$    

Business-type Funds
Water Sewer Storm Water Nonmajor Funds Total

Receivables:

Accounts 782,840$          394,578$          222,097$          193,416$           1,592,931$       

Contracts -                     -                     -                     13,565                13,565               

Gross receivables 782,840            394,578            222,097            206,981              1,606,496         

Less:  allowance for

uncollectibles (5,901)                (9,198)                (4,622)                (6,952)                 (26,673)             

Net total receivables 776,939$          385,380$          217,475$          200,029$           1,579,823$       
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Land Held for Resale 

Land acquired by the Redevelopment Agency (a special revenue fund) and held for resale is account-
ed for as land held for resale. The land held for resale is reported at cost (which is the lesser of cost or 
fair value). The cost of land held for resale is held as inventory until the land is sold.  Land transferred 
from infrastructure assets of the City is recorded at a nominal amount for accountability purposes. 
When the Redevelopment Agency sells land, the proceeds are recorded as revenue at an amount 
greater than or less than the carrying amount, the resulting gain/loss is accounted for as another fi-
nancing source/use. Revenue on sale of land held for resale is recognized when measurable and avail-
able. 

 

Deferred Revenue 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer 
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the 
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue 
reported in the government funds were as follows: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

(The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 

Unavailable Unearned

Property taxes receivable (General Fund) 3,087,606$   -                

Property taxes receivable (RDA Fund) 852,665         -                

Court fines receivable (General Fund) 225,787         -                

Loans receivable (RDA Fund) -                  -                

Code enforcement liens receivable (General Fund) 916                 -                

Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds 4,166,974$   -$             
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 Capital Assets 

 Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

 
07/01/22 Increases Decreases 06/30/23

Governmental activities

Capital assets, not depreciated:

Land 65,065,740$        -$                      -$                      65,065,740$        

Construction in progress 20,046                  102,790                (20,046)                 102,790                

Total capital assets,

not depreciated 65,085,786          102,790                (20,046)                 65,168,530          

Capital assets, depreciated:

Buildings 27,066,336          -                         -                         27,066,336          

Improvements other

than buildings 4,448,384            48,340                  -                         4,496,724            

Infrastructure 56,758,500          1,058,152            -                         57,816,651          

Machinery and equipment 6,057,721            875,134                (98,851)                 6,834,004            

Total capital assets,

 depreciated 94,330,941          1,981,626            (98,851)                 96,213,716          

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (5,804,995)           (553,003)              -                         (6,357,998)           

Improvements other

than buildings (1,027,053)           (159,198)              -                         (1,186,251)           

Infrastructure (37,657,916)         (1,593,493)           -                         (39,251,408)         

Machinery and equipment (3,890,193)           (544,732)              53,137                  (4,381,787)           

Total accumulated depreciation (48,380,158)         (2,850,425)           53,137                  (51,177,444)         

Total capital assets,

depreciated (net) 45,950,783          (868,799)              (45,714)                 45,036,271          

Net governmental capital assets 111,036,570$     (766,009)$            (65,759)$              110,204,802$     
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 Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows (continued): 

 
07/01/22 Increases Decreases 06/30/23

Business-type activtities

Capital assets, not depreciated:

Water stock and rights 3,081,299$          -$                      -$                      3,081,299$          

Land 115,062 -                         -                         115,062                

Construction in progress 77,818 -                         -                         77,818                  

Total capital assets,

 not depreciated 3,274,179            -                         -                         3,274,179            

Capital assets, depreciated:

Buildings 4,174,626 -                         -                         4,174,626            

Improvements other than buildings

Water 41,346,082 -                         -                         41,346,082          

Sewer 5,218,985 -                         -                         5,218,985            

Infrastructure 7,010,064 -                         -                         7,010,064            

Machinery and equipment 465,732 37,989                  -                         503,720                

Total capital assets, depreciated 58,215,489          37,989                  -                         58,253,477          

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (935,079)              (92,423)                 -                         (1,027,502)           

Improvements other than buildings

Water (12,797,707)         (952,370)              -                         (13,750,078)         

Sewer (1,222,601)           (107,967)              -                         (1,330,568)           

Street l ights -                         -                         -                         -                         

Infrastructure (2,327,795)           (173,877)              -                         (2,501,672)           

Machinery and equipment (226,501)              (35,655)                 (262,156)              

Total accumulated depreciation (17,509,683)         (1,362,293)           -                         (18,871,976)         

Total capital assets,

depreciated (net) 40,705,806          (1,324,304)           -                         39,381,501          

Net business-type capital assets 43,979,985$        (1,324,304)$         -$                      42,655,680$        
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In the government-wide financial statements depreciation was charged as follows by program or ac-

tivity: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 As of June 30, 2023, the City had construction commitments of $332,562 for unfinished projects. 

Investments in and Advances to Joint Ventures and Intangible Assets 

South Valley Water Reclamation Facility 

The Sewer fund has an investment in the South Valley Water Reclamation Facility (SVWRF). SVWRF 
was created by an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement dated June 23, 1978, for the purpose of develop-
ing, acquiring, constructing, financing, maintaining, repairing, and operating a regional sewage and 
water treatment plant and related facilities located in the south part of Salt Lake County. On May 20, 
2004, the Interlocal Agreement was amended for the purpose of converting SVWRF to a separate le-
gal entity (a special district under State law rather than a joint administrative entity) and to clarify 
ownership status, facilitate transfers of ownership, and clarify capacity rights. The City uses the cost 
method rather than the equity method for reporting purposes. 

 

During fiscal year 2012, SVWRF completed an expansion project increasing the operation from 38 mil-
lion gallons per day to 50 million gallons per day. The right to the capacity has been adjusted in ac-
cordance with the proportion of the expansion paid by the participating entity. Participation in plant 
expansion is not required. 

 

 

 

 

Governmental activities:

General Government 302,560$             

Public Safety 72,900                  

Highways and Public Improvements 1,607,307            

Parks, Recreation, and Public Property 454,200                

Capital assets held by the government's Internal Service Funds are charged to various 

functions based on their usage of assets 413,458                

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 2,850,425$          

Business-type activities:

Water 1,014,695$          

Storm water 212,623                

Sewer 134,974                

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 1,362,292$          
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The following entities have capacity rights as of December 31, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Each entity appoints one member to the Board. Voting power is not related to ownership, therefore, 
each entity is equal to another for voting privileges. Each entity is billed its share of operating costs 
based on the entity’s metered usage. The City paid operating costs of $1,376,434 and made no capital 
contributions to SVWRF in fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Future capital contributions are anticipat-
ed. 
 
The complete financial statements for South Valley Water Reclamation Facility for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2022 can be obtained from South Valley Water Reclamation Facility, 7495 South 1300 
West, West Jordan, UT 84084-3417. 

 

Trans-Jordan Cities Landfill 

The Trans-Jordan Association was organized May 22, 1968 as a joint enterprise fund of the Cities of 
Sandy, Midvale, West Jordan, and Murray, Utah. The City of South Jordan, Utah joined the Association 
during fiscal year 1997. The cities of Draper and Riverton, Utah joined the Association during fiscal 
year 1998. The primary purpose of the Association is the operation, maintenance, and control of a 
refuse dumping site east of Bingham Canyon in Salt Lake County. The City has no firm commitments 
to make additional equity investments in Trans-Jordan Cities. The City’s ownership in the Association 
is calculated from the tipping fees for the preceding ten fiscal years. The Association is governed by its 
Board of Directors. Under the organization agreement, the Board of Directors is composed of the 
Mayors, or their appointed representatives, of the participating cities. The Board of Directors appoints 
the management and staff of the Association and approves all financial matters such as the operating 
budget and usage fees. 
 
As of June 30, 2023, the City has a 5.2 percent ownership share in the Trans-Jordan Cities (the Associ-
ation) joint enterprise. The City’s equity in the net resources of the Association at June 30, 2023 is re-
ported in the government-wide statement of net position. 
 

Tipping fees paid from the Sanitation Fund to Trans-Jordan Cities were $223,584 for fiscal year 2023. 
 
The complete financial statements for Trans-Jordan Cities may be obtained from Trans-Jordan Cities, 
10473 South Bacchus Highway, South Jordan, UT 84009-6002. 

Capacity

(in millions of

Entity Percent gallons per day)

South Valley Sewer District 38.72% 19.36                  

West Jordan City 36.44% 18.22                  

Sandy Suburban Improvement District 11.00% 5.50                     

Midvalley Improvement District 7.68% 3.84                     

Midvale City Corporation 6.16% 3.08                     

100.00% 50.00                  
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Valley Emergency Communications Center 

The City is a member of Valley Emergency Communications Center (VECC). VECC was organized June 
30, 1988, as a joint enterprise between several cities and Salt Lake County. The primary purpose is to 
fund and operate a communications center which handles communications and other services for the 
members, including police, fire, 911 service, dispatch and records services. 
 
VECC is governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of one representative from each member appoint-
ed by the governing body thereof. The activities are funded by a surcharge tax on telephones within 
each member’s city and member assessments. The Board of Trustees sets assessments for all member 
agencies in amounts sufficient to provide the funds required by the annual budget. VECC determines 
the 911 assessments for the telephone users within the member’s jurisdictions. 
 
Separate audited financial statements for Valley Emergency Communications Center may be obtained 
from the Finance Director at 5360 South Ridge Village Drive, West Valley City, UT 84118.  

 

Utah Telecommunications Open Infrastructure Network  

The City is one of 11 founding members of the Utah Telecommunications Open Infrastructure Net-
work (UTOPIA), formed by an interlocal cooperative agreement organized under the laws of the State 
of Utah. UTOPIA was created to design, finance, build, operate and maintain an open, wholesale, pub-
lic Telecommunication infrastructure that delivers high-speed connections to every home and busi-
ness in the member communities. UTOPIA is jointly owned by the members. No equity investment 
has been recorded by the City since UTOPIA continues to report a net assets deficit. As of June 30, 
2022, the net position deficit was $311,501,875 (June 30, 2023 financial statements were not availa-
ble at the time of this publication). 

 
The City is a pledging member and has pledged sales and use tax revenues to partially guarantee pay-
ment of UTOPIA’s bonds. In return for the pledge, the City was among the first cities to receive UTO-
PIA’s services. In July 2008, UTOPIA issued $185,000,000 in revenue bonds. The first two years of 
bond payments were made from a debt reserve fund. In December 2011, UTOPIA refinanced the 
bond. From that point on, until the bonds are due in July 2026, net revenues from UTOPIA will reim-
burse the debt service reserve fund for payments on the bond debt. To the extent that there are in-
sufficient net revenues to pay the debt service, the 11 pledged members are required to reimburse 
the UTOPIA debt service fund of any shortfall by their respective percentages up to a specific dollar 
amount. Any amount paid by Pledging Members to UTOPIA to reimburse the debt service reserve 
fund will be a loan to be repaid by UTOPIA.  
 
The City’s annual commitment increases by 2% each year, and ranges from $950,813 in Fiscal Year 
2023 to $1,331,367 in Fiscal Year 2040. Cumulative pledge payments made by the City to UTOPIA to-
tal $10,326,572. If or when the UTOPIA network is substantially built out and running successfully, 
repayment from UTOPIA of all or part of these pledge payments is possible. The City currently expens-
es its annual pledge payment. 
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Utah Infrastructure Agency 

The City is one of nine member cities of the Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), formed by an interlocal 
cooperative agreement organized under the laws of the State of Utah. The UIA was established on 
July 6, 2010, for the purpose of financing, constructing, equipping, and operating an open, wholesale, 
advanced communications infrastructure utility system throughout the City and interconnection with 
other members of the UIA. The UIA has issued debt of approximately $497 million (as of June 30, 
2022). The City pledged energy sales and use tax revenue toward its share of any debt service fund 
shortfall. The anticipated pledge amount is 6.6 percent of the annual debt service fund shortfall. Any 
bonds or debt issued or incurred by UIA will not constitute debt of the City. As of June 30, 2022 (the 
last date audited financial statements are available), the net position was $(201,591) deficit . 

 

Unified Police Department (UPD) 

The UPD is a Police Department, run by the Salt Lake County Sherriff that serves the following Salt 
Lake County entities: City of Holladay, Midvale City, Millcreek City, Brighton Town, and the unincorpo-
rated areas of Salt Lake County. The UPD allows communities to have comprehensive police services 
at a lower cost. By combining a variety of police services such as SWAT, forensics, records, canine, and 
media services under one organization, communities can share the costs with other communities, 
saving local governments and reducing the tax burden of citizens. 
 
The UPD is run by a Board of Directors consisting of elected officials from the communities served. 
Day-to-day operations are run by the Sheriff. In addition to managing shared services, the Sheriff 
oversees local precincts, each with its own Chief who is chosen by each respective community. Chiefs 
run each local precinct and have authority over local operations such as Community Oriented Policing, 
traffic, patrol, and crossing guards. This flexible structure allows participating communities to take ad-
vantage of the cost savings and efficiencies of pooled services while retaining local control over pre-
cinct-level operations. 
 

The annual budget for the UPD is formally adopted by the UPD Board of Directors, of which the 
Midvale City Mayor is a full member with full voting rights. The City paid $11,351,484 in member as-
sessment fees in fiscal year 2023. 
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Interfund Receivable, Payables and Transfers 

During fiscal year 2023, a number of transfers were made which will not be repaid. Such amounts for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of ma-
jor capital facilities. The City currently has no general obligation bonds.  
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Fund Transferring Out Fund Receiving Transfer Purpose Amount

General Fund Capital Projects Fund Budgeted capital projects 1,987,600$    

General Fund Debt Service Fund Debt payment 1,157,961       

General Fund Telecommunications UTOPIA pledge payment 702,484          

General Fund Sanitation Fund General Operations 8,100               

RDA Debt Service Fund Debt payment 449,132          

General Fund IT Fund Purchase assets 200,000          

4,505,277$    

Fund Transfer Out Transfer In

General 4,056,145$                            -$                                          

RDA 449,132                                  

Debt Service -                                           1,607,093                                

Capital Projects -                                           1,987,600                                

IT -                                           200,000                                   

Telecommunications -                                           702,484                                   

Sanitation 8,100                                        

4,505,277$                            4,505,277$                              
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Revenue Bonds 

The City has issued bonds where the revenues and assets of the issuing fund are pledged as security 
for the bonds. 

Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2023 by issue are as follows: 
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Original Annual Interest Final due Balance

Bond Description Issue Principal Rate date 6/30/2023

Water, Sewer, and Storm Revene Series 2020 8,175,000$            $514,000 to $906,000 1.36% 10/1/2030 6,502,000$         

RDA Revenue Series 2015 12,961,000           $606,000 to $940,000 2.06% to 2.62% 5/1/2034 9,094,000           

RDA Refunding Series 2017 17,670,000           $925,000 to $1,675,000 4.00% to 5.00% 5/1/2034 14,775,000         

RDA Revenue Series 2018 7,570,000             $385,000 to $730,000 5.00% 5/1/2034 6,355,000           

MBA Series 2012 8,990,000 $235,000 to $520,000 2.00% to 3.50% 10/15/2038 5,155,000           

Sales Tax Revenue Series 2017 8,340,000 $155,000 to $745,000 2.00% to 4.00% 5/1/2032 5,775,000           

Water and Sewer Series 2007C 5,050,000 $208,000 to $303,000 2.00% 10/1/2029 1,999,000           

Water/Sewer/Storm Ref Series 2016 4,490,000 $230,000 to $395,000 2.00% to 4.00% 10/1/2032 3,270,000           

Water/Sewer/Storm  Series 2018 6,225,000 $155,000 to $380,000 3.00% to 5.00% 10/1/2043 5,470,000

Water and Sewer Series 2012 1,537,000             $86,000 to $124,000 2.90% 4/1/2027 475,000               

81,008,000$        58,870,000$       
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The City has pledged sales tax revenue for the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) 2017 Crossover Tax In-
crement and Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, RDA 2018 Tax Increment and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 2017 
Midvale City Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, and to partially guarantee Series 2011 Revenue Bonds issued 
by Utah Telecommunications Open Infrastructure Network (UTOPIA). See notes regarding Interlocal 
Agreements for more information on UTOPIA. The remaining principal payments total $46,280,997 
($21,130,000 RDA, $5,775,000 Midvale City, and $19,375,997 UTOPIA). The RDA bonds mature in 
2034, Midvale City bonds in 2032, and the UTOPIA bonds in 2040. For the current year, principal and 
interest paid totaled $4,242,913 ($2,515,100 RDA, $777,000 Midvale City, and $950,813 UTOPIA), and 
total sales tax revenues were $12,306,587. The RDA Revenue Bonds are primarily secured with Tax 
Increment from the RDA, which is sufficient to cover the debt service on the bonds, and the City does 
not anticipate using sales tax revenue to make these payments. We estimate that annual principal 
and interest payments on the UTOPIA bonds will require 8 percent of pledged revenues, and the an-
nual principal and interest payments on the Midvale City sales tax bonds will require 6 percent of 
pledge revenues. If the City is called upon to pay debt service on the RDA bonds, the total required for 
all bond series would be 20 percent of pledged revenues.  
 
The City has pledged energy sales and use tax revenue to guarantee that Utah Infrastructure Agency 
(UIA) fulfills its revenue requirement from the bond agreements. UIA is required by the Series 2017 
A&B bond covenants to have revenue equal to the operations expenses and capital costs in a fiscal 
year. In the event there is a shortfall, the eight pledging cities have agreed to lend energy sales and 
use tax revenues, limited to a yearly maximum of $5,151,152. Midvale’s share of that pledge is 6.6 
percent, or $339,988. This pledge is in place until the bonds mature in October of 2036. The total 
amount of the City’s pledge through maturity is $5.8 million. FY2023 revenues from energy sales and 
use tax were $2,774,920. If the City is called upon to make a pledge payment, the payment amount 
would require 12% of pledged revenues. UIA has had sufficient revenue to service the debt, and it is 
unlikely the City’s pledge will be required. 

Principal Interest Totals

2024 4,924,000$                       2,143,955$          7,067,955$            

2025 4,822,000                         1,975,163            6,797,163               

2026 4,998,000                         1,801,276            6,799,276               

2027 5,160,000                         1,628,372            6,788,372               

2028 to 2032 25,855,000                       5,333,947            31,188,947            

2033 to 2037 9,976,000                         1,263,130            11,239,130            

2038 to 2042 2,390,000                         329,353                2,719,353               

2043 to 2047 745,000                             27,278                  772,278                  

58,870,000$                     14,502,475$       73,372,475$          
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The City has pledged water and sewer revenue for the following revenue bonds: Series 2007C and 
2012 revenue bonds. The remaining principal and interest payments total $2,672,074. The 2007C 
bonds mature in 2030 and the 2012 bonds mature in 2027. For the current year, principal and interest 
paid totaled $435,755 water and sewer operating revenues totaled $9,407,123. We estimate that an-
nual principal and interest payments on the bonds will require 5% of pledged revenues. 
 
The City has pledged storm water utility revenue, along with water and sewer revenue, for the Series 
2016, 2018, and 2020 revenue bonds. The remaining principal and interest payments total 
$18,921,782. The final bonds (series 2018) mature in fiscal year 2044. For the current year, principal 
and interest paid totaled $1,700,497 and revenue from water, sewer, and storm water utilities was 
$11,590,814. We estimate that annual principal and interest payments on the bonds will require 15 
percent of pledged revenues. 
 
The Redevelopment Agency (RDA) has pledged tax increment revenues to guarantee the 2015, 2017, 
and 2018 RDA Revenue Bonds. The remaining principal and interest payments total $38,235,422. The 
bonds mature in 2034. For the current year, principal and interest paid totaled $3,482,772. Tax incre-
ment revenues were $8,799,240. We estimate that annual principal and interest payments will re-
quire a maximum of 40 percent of pledged revenues. 
 
The Municipal Building Authority (MBA) has pledged lease revenue to guarantee 2012 MBA Revenue 
bonds. The remaining principal and interest payments total $6,553,797. The bonds mature in fiscal 
year 2039. For the current year, principal and interest paid totaled $675,169. Lease revenues were 
$680,419. We estimate that annual principal and interest payments on the bonds will require 100 per-
cent of pledged revenues. 
  
Direct Borrowings  

The City has borrowed monies from the Utah State Department of Transportation’s State Infrastruc-
ture Loan Bank. For the construction of  a parking structure. It is essential to clarify these direct bar-
rowings are not intended for future capital purposes. 

Direct borrowings outstanding at June 30, 2023 by loan are as follows: 

Original Annual Interest Final due Balance

Bond Description Issue Principal Rate date 6/30/2023

UDOT Parking Structure Loan 2,163,893$           $198,717 to $234,595 2.35% 3/31/2031 1,766,125$         

2022 SIB Zions Loan 5,500,000 $311,830 to $405,946 2.65% 3/1/2037 5,196,618           

7,663,893$           6,962,743$         
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Direct borrowings debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The City has pledged pass-through revenue towards the payment of these direct borrowings as both 
loans also include agreements with private developers for the full amounts of the loans. These direct        
barrowings are not for capital purposes and will never represent a capital asset to the City.  
 

Notes Payable 

The City entered into a service contract note payable with UIA, wherein the City will bill and collect 
connection service fees from end users of UTOPIA located in the City on behalf of UIA. The City is enti-
tled to 5 percent of the fee for administrative costs and the remaining 95 percent is due to UIA. The 
City becomes a signatory party to the end user agreement, along with UIA and the end user. The City 
is responsible for collection of the user fees stipulated in the agreement should the end user default. 
At June 30, 2023, the note payable balance for services fees collected was $98,211. During 2012, the 
City created a telecommunications enterprise fund to account for the activity of this service contract. 
These notes payable are not for capital purposes and will never represent a capital asset to the City. 
 
 
Significant Default Event 

Significant events of default consist of (a) failure to pay principal or interest when due; (b) failure to 
fulfill all obligations; and (c) bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or liquidation pro-
ceedings. In the event of default, the City may need to make monthly deposits into the bond fund, 
principal amounts and accelerated interest may become immediately due. Creditors may also pursue 
other remedies to recoup debts.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Principal Interest Totals

2024 515,149$                           192,031$             707,180$                

2025 528,189                             179,314                707,503                  

2026 541,561                             166,274                707,834                  

2027 555,272                             152,902                708,174                  

2028 to 2032 2,744,963                         477,783                3,222,745               

2033 to 2037 2,077,610                         168,049                2,245,659               

6,962,743$                       1,336,353$          8,299,096$            
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Compensated absences for governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.  

Risk Management  

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of as-
sets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participates in the 
Utah Local Government Insurance Trust (Trust), a public entity risk pool to manage its risk of loss. The 
City pays an annual premium to the trust for its general insurance coverage. The Trust was created to 
be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for 
claims in excess of one million dollars for each insured event. As of June 30, 2023, there were no out-
standing unpaid claims. Also, the City had no claim settlements during the three years ending June 30, 
2023 which exceeded its insurance coverage. 
 
The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determinable, in the opinion of the City’s counsel the resolution of these matters will not have a ma-
terial adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

 06/30/22 Increases Decreases 06/30/23 Due in One Year

Governmental activities

Bonds payable:

Lease revenue 5,665,000$          -$                      (510,000)$            5,155,000$          520,000$             

Tax revenue 38,644,000          -                         (2,645,000)           35,999,000          2,752,000            

Add:  unamortized premiums

and discounts 3,326,509            -                         (425,923)              2,900,586            -                         

Total bonds payable 47,635,509          -                         (3,580,923)           44,054,586          3,272,000            

Direct borrowings 7,465,176            -                         (502,432)              6,962,744            515,149                

Compensated absences 431,568 68,258                  -                         499,827                306,605                

Governmental activities,

long-term liabilities 55,532,253$        68,258$                (4,083,355)$         51,517,157$        4,093,754$          

Business-type activities

Bonds payable:

Water, Sewer and Storm Drain 19,346,000$        -$                      (1,630,000)$         17,716,000$        1,652,400$          

Add:  unamortized premium 651,078                -                         (92,020)                 559,058                51,621                  

Total bonds payable 19,997,078          -                         (1,722,020)           18,275,058          1,704,021            

Direct borrowings 111,601                -                         (13,390)                 98,211                  -                         

Compensated absences 208,538                27,459                  (2,605)                   233,392                165,506                

Business-type activities,

long-term liabilities 20,317,217$        27,459$                (1,738,015)$         18,606,661$        1,869,527$          
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Redevelopment Agency 

In connection with the activities of the Redevelopment Agency (RDA), intergovernmental revenues 
from property tax increments of other governmental entities totaling $8,896,634 were generated. 
The RDA was not required to pay any portion of this revenue to other taxing agencies. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2023, funds expended by the RDA were limited to the categories of 
redevelopment, administration, highways and public improvements, and debt service. Redevelop-
ment costs totaled $421,693, administration costs totaled $1,759,038, highways and public improve-
ments costs totaled $828,909 and debt service costs totaled $3,479,992. 

 

Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans 

General Information about the Pension Plan  

Plan Description  
 

Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement Systems. Utah Re-
tirement Systems are comprised of the following Pension Trust Funds: 

 
Defined Benefit Plans 

 
• Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a multiple 

employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system. 
 
• Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System) is a 

multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system. 
 

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees beginning on 
or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, 
are members of the Tier 2 Retirement System. 
 
Retirement Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds 
defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of 
Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. 
 
URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement Sys-
tems, 560 East 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84102-2021 or visiting the website: www.urs.org. 
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Summary of Benefits by System  

URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contributions  

As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to contrib-
ute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the Utah State 
Retirement Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions (where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by em-
ployees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liabil-
ity. Contribution rates as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

 

 

System

Final Average 

Salary

Years of Service Required 

and or Age Eligible for 

Benefit

Benefit Percent Per 

Year of Service COLA**

Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 years any age

25 years any age*

20 years age 60* 2.0% per year all  years Up to 4%

10 years age 62*

4 years age 65

Tier 2 Public Employee System Highest 5 years 35 years any age

20 years age 60* 1.5% per year all  years Up to 2.5%

10 years age 62*

4 years age 65

*Actuarial reductions are applied.

**All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for 

Judges, which is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price 

Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.

Employee Paid

Employer 

Contributions Rates

Employer 

401(k)

Contributory System

111 Local Government Div - Tier 2 N/A 16.01% 0.18%

Noncontributory System

15 Local Government Div - Tier 1 N/A 17.97% N/A

Tier 2 DC Only

211 Local Government N/A 6.19% 10.00%

***Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Tier 1 plans.
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Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liabil-
ity of the Tier 1 plans. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the employer and employee contributions to the Systems 
were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System. Contributions 
in the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities of the Tier 1 Systems. 

 

Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Relat-

ed to Pensions  

At June 30, 2023, the City reported a net pension asset of $0 and a net pension liability of $741,781.  

 
The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total pension lia-
bility used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of January 1, 2022 and rolled- forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion 
of the net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer's actual contributions to the 
Systems during the plan year over the total of all employer contributions to the System during the 
plan year. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $555,457. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

System Employer Contributions Employee Contributions

Noncontributory System 454,046$                         N/A

Tier 2 Public Employees System 545,420                            N/A

Tier 2 DC Only System 37,777                              N/A

Total Contributions 1,037,243$                      -$                                   

Net Pension Asset

Net Pension 

Liability

Proportionate 

Share

Proportionate Share 

December 31, 2018

Change 

(Decrease)

Noncontributory System -$                          596,738$     0.3484096% 0.3537296% -0.0053200%

Tier 2 Public Employees System -                            145,043       0.1332020% 0.1241807% 0.0090213%

Total net pension asset/liability -$                          741,781$     

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2022
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At June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
relating to pensions from the following sources: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The $507,866 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contribu-
tions made by the City prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of De-
cember 31, 2022. 
 
These contributions will be recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability in the upcoming fis-
cal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 
 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 251,395$        5,755$             

Changes in assumptions 144,885           2,752               

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 

investments 452,091           -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 32,172             7,043               

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 507,866           -                    

Total 1,388,409$     15,550$           

Year Ended December 31,

Net Deferred 

Outflows 

(Inflows) of 

Resources

2023 (73,939)$         

2024 34,716             

2025 185,923           

2026 657,241           

2027 12,546             

Thereafter 48,504             
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Noncontributory System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, we recognized pension expense of $277,434. 
 
At June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
relating to pension from the following sources: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
The $214,593 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contribu-
tions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 
31, 2022. 
 
These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal 
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 
 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 202,405$        -$                 

Changes in assumptions 97,797             2,383               

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 

investments 393,614           -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 6,825               690                   

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 214,593           -                    

Total 915,234$        3,073$             

Year Ended December 31,

Net Deferred 

Outflows 

(Inflows) of 

Resources

2023 (82,223)$         

2024 17,219             

2025 158,100           

2026 604,472           

2027 -                    

Thereafter -                    
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Tier 2 Public Employees System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, we recognized pension expense of $278,022. 
 
At June 30, 2023, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources re-
lating to pensions from the following sources: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The $293,273 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contribu-
tions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 
31, 2022. 
 
These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal 
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 48,990$           5,755$             

Changes in assumptions 47,088             369                   

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 

investments 58,477             -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 25,347             6,353               

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 293,273           -                    

Total 473,175$        12,477$           

Year Ended December 31,

Net Deferred 

Outflows 

(Inflows) of 

Resources

2023 8,284$             

2024 17,497             

2025 27,823             

2026 52,769             

2027 12,546             

Thereafter 48,504             



 

Midvale City FY2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Page 83 

Midvale City  
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 

Actuarial Assumptions  

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the fol-
lowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:  

 

Inflation    2.50 percent 

Salary Increases   3.25 - 9.25 percent, average, including inflation 

Investment Rate of Return  6.85 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were adopted from an actuarial experience study dated January 1, 2020. The retired 
mortality tables are developed using URS retiree experience and are based upon gender, occupation, 
and age as appropriate with projected improvement using 80% of the ultimate rates from the MP-
2019 improvement assumption using a base year of 2020. The mortality assumption for active mem-
bers is the PUB-2010 Employees Mortality Table for public employees, teachers, and public safety 
members, respectively. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2022, valuation were based on an experience study 
of the demographic assumptions as of January 1, 2020, and a review of assumptions as of January 1, 
2021. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method, in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected re-
turns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class 
and is applied consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges are combined to pro-
duce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The 6.85 percent assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50 percent 
and a real return of 4.35 percent that is net of investment expense.  

Asset class:

Target Asset 

Allocation

Real Return 

Arithmetic 

Basis

Long-Term 

expected 

portfolio real 

Equity securities 35.00% 6.58% 2.30%

Debt securities 20.00% 1.08% 0.22%

Real assets 18.00% 5.72% 1.03%

Private equity 12.00% 9.80% 1.18%

Absolute return 15.00% 2.91% 0.44%

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00% -0.11% 0.00%

Totals 100.00% 5.17%

Inflation 2.50%

Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.67%

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis
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Discount Rate  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.85 percent. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at con-
tractually required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board. Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond 
Index Rate.  

 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Liability to Changes in the Dis-
count Rate 

The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the dis-
count rate of 6.85 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.85 percent) or 
1-percentage-point higher (7.85 percent) than the current rate:  

 

 

 

 

 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately is-
sued URS financial report. 

 

Defined Contribution Savings Plans  

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and 
are generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, but may 
also be used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement sav-
ings programs authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal Revenue code. De-
tailed information regarding plan provisions is available in the separately issued URS financial report. 

 

 

 

 

System

1% Decrease

or 5.85%

Discount Rate

or 6.85%

1% Increase

or 7.85%

Noncontributory System 3,760,844$        596,738$           (2,047,039)$       

Tier 2 Public Employees System 633,758              145,043              (231,450)            

Total 4,394,602$        741,781$           (2,278,489)$       
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The City participates in the URS 401(k), Roth IRA, and Traditional IRA plans. Employee and employer 

contributions to the URS Defined Contribution Savings Plans for fiscal year ended June 30, were as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Subsequent Events 

 Subsequent events from June 30, 2023 through the date of the audit report, which is the date the fi

 nancial statements were available to be issued include a water, sewer, and storm water bond issu

 ance in September 2023 for $9,910,000 to fund capital projects.  

 

 

 

 

(The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
 

 

 

2023 2022 2021 2020

401(k) Plan

Employer Contributions 81,278$   90,976$   98,786$   87,251$   

Employee Contributions 93,838     67,525     59,515     45,685     

Roth IRA Plan

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions 25,251     23,105     19,375     13,237     

Traditional IRA

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions 250           -            -            400           

Actuarial calculated pension expense per GASB 68 schedule for Net Pension Liability

Noncontributory 277,434$         

Tier 2 public employees 278,022

       Total Pension Expense 555,456$         
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IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW STANDARD AND CORRECTION OF ERRORS

Correction of Errors - During the year, it was identified that the City had not reported note receivables balances in the 

Debt Service fund for amounts owed to the City as a result of the state infrastructure bank pass through loan with 

Gardner Company. It was determined the beginning fund balance in the Debt Service fund, as well as the Government-

Type Activities should be restated to reflect the expenditure that should not have been recognized and record a 

corresponding receivable. The effect on net position is the increase of beginning net position by $1,969,413.

Correction of Errors - During the year, it was identified that the City previously recognized ARPA (American Rescue 

Plan Act) funds as revenue, which should be reclassified as unearned revenue. This adjustment reflects the funds 

received, but not yet spent.  It was determined the beginning net position in the Water fund, as well as the Business-

Type Activities should be restated to reflect the decrease in net position of $2,019,298, as well as the corresponding 

increase in unearned revenue. 

Correction of Errors - During the year, it was discovered that net income from the IT and Fleet internal service funds 

for the prior year was inaccurately allocated in the Government-Wide Statements. The correction involved 

reallocating this net income, which should have been attributed as Internal Balances on the Statement of Net 

Position. Initially, it was fully allocated to Governmental Activities. As a result of this correction, the Governmental 

Activities net position has decreased by $436,115, and the Business-Type Activities net position has increased by the 

same amount.
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Midvale City  
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Year Ended 12/31

Noncontributory

Retirement

System

Tier 2 Public

Employees

Retirement System

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 2022 0.3484096% 0.1332020%

2021 0.3537296% 0.1241807%

2020 0.3493276% 0.1320274%

2019 0.3447311% 0.1212015%

2018 0.3657182% 0.1350688%

2017 0.3573643% 0.1127146%

2016 0.3707456% 0.1077038%

2015 0.3673148% 0.1159186%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 2022 596,738$                  145,043$                  

2021 (2,025,847)                (52,558)                      

2020 179,185                     18,989                       

2019 1,299,246                 27,259                       

2018 1,573,107                 11,013                       

2017 2,294,716                 12,573                       

2016 2,097,880                 (258)                           

2015 1,594,967                 (3,514)                        

Covered payroll 2022 2,543,140$               2,898,981$               

2021 2,496,511                 2,304,959                 

2020 2,470,587                 2,110,596                 

2019 2,554,355                 1,684,674                 

2018 2,824,864                 1,222,311                 

2017 2,977,824                 924,344                     

2016 3,082,556                 695,834                     

2015 3,126,027                 568,393                     

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 2022 23.46% 5.00%

as a percentage of its covered payroll 2021 -81.15% -2.28%

2020 7.25% 0.90%

2019 50.86% 1.62%

2018 55.69% 0.90%

2017 70.06% 1.36%

2016 68.06% -0.03%

2015 51.02% -0.62%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 2022 97.50% 92.30%

pension liability (asset) 2021 108.7% 103.8%

2020 99.2% 98.3%

2019 93.7% 96.5%

2018 91.9% 97.4%

2017 87.3% 95.1%

2016 87.8% 100.2%

2015 99.2% 103.5%

* In accordance with paragraph 81.a of GASB 68, employers will  disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) in the RSI section of the Comprehensive Annual Finance Report. This schedule presents this 

information from the date the information was required. Subsequent years will  be added as the information becomes available.
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Midvale City  
Schedule of Pension Contributions 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

As of fiscal year 

ended June 30,

Actuarial 

determined 

contributions

Contributions in 

relation to the 

contractually 

required 

contribution

Contribution 

deficiency 

(excess) Covered payroll

Contributions

as a percentage

of covered

employee payroll

Noncontributory System 2014 539,546$         539,546$            -$               3,271,588$       16.49%

2015 556,711           556,711              -                  3,044,411          18.29%

2016 558,513           558,513              -                  3,129,703          17.85%

2017 528,980           528,980              -                  2,888,062          18.32%

2018 510,283           510,283              -                  2,765,409          18.45%

2019 497,592           497,592              -                  2,694,057          18.47%

2020 460,129           460,129              -                  2,491,222          18.47%

2021 446,429           446,429              -                  2,417,053          18.47%

2022 464,306           464,306              -                  2,513,842          18.47%

2023 454,046           454,046              -                  2,526,691          17.97%

Tier 2 Public Employees System* 2014 71,643$           71,643$              -$               512,099$           13.99%

2015 91,568             91,568                 -                  612,905             14.94%

2016 119,182           119,182              -                  800,495             14.89%

2017 166,245           166,245              -                  1,079,233          15.40%

2018 228,677           228,677              -                  1,436,624          15.92%

2019 255,919           255,919              -                  1,639,201          15.61%

2020 292,879           292,879              -                  1,834,048          15.97%

2021 346,260           346,260              -                  2,193,157          15.79%

2022 391,397           391,397              -                  2,435,576          16.07%

2023 545,420           545,420              -                  3,406,746          16.01%

Tier 2 Public Employees DC Only System* 2014 -$                  -$                     -$               -$                    0.00%

2015 1,193                1,193                   -                  17,748               6.72%

2016 2,484                2,484                   -                  37,128               6.69%

2017 6,819                6,819                   -                  101,929             6.69%

2018 15,341             15,341                 -                  230,754             6.65%

2019 29,990             29,990                 -                  437,904             6.85%

2020 37,021             37,021                 -                  500,921             7.39%

2021 50,439             50,439                 -                  598,944             8.42%

2022 44,828             44,828                 -                  508,273             8.82%

2023 37,777             37,777                 -                  532,412             7.10%

*Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2 systems were created effective

  July 1, 2011.

Paragraph 81.b of GASB 68 requires employers to disclose a 10-year history of contributions in the RSI section of their Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report. Contributions as a percentage of covered-payroll may be different than the board-certified rate due to rounding and other administrative issues. 

This schedule presents this information from the date the information was required. Subsequent years will  be added as the information becomes available.
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Midvale City  
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 
June 30, 2023 
1. CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 
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No changes were made in actuarial assumptions from the prior year’s valuation.  
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Midvale City  
Combining Statement of Net Position—Nonmajor Proprietary Funds  
June 30, 2023 
 

Street 

Lighting Sanitation Telecom Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted 215,858$      240,085$      48,509$         504,452$      

Receivables:

Accounts 42,203           142,105         2,156             186,464         

Contracts receivable -                  -                  13,565           13,565           

Deposits 17                   17                   -                  34                   

Total current assets 258,078         382,207         64,230           704,515         

Noncurrent assets:

Contracts receivable -                  -                  89,815           89,815           

Notes receivable, net -                  -                  266,187         266,187         

Investment in Trans-Jordan 

Cities Landfil l -                  2,025,473     -                  2,025,473     

Total noncurrent assets -                  2,025,473     356,002         2,381,475     

Total assets 258,078         2,407,680     420,232         3,085,990     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,998             6,911             -                  8,909             

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,998             6,911             -                  8,909             

LIABILITIES

Current l iabilities:

Accounts payable 19,906           95,734           1,045             116,685         

Accrued liabilities 6,399             672                 -                  7,071             

Compensated absences 1,297             1,223             -                  2,520             

Total current l iabilities 27,602           97,629           1,045             126,276         

Noncurrent l iabilities:

Notes payable -                  -                  98,211           98,211           

Net pension liability 1,261             1,632             -                  2,893             

Total noncurrent l iabilities 1,261             1,632             98,211           101,104         

Total l iabilities 28,863           99,261           99,256           227,380         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 26                   34                   -                  60                   

Total deferred inflows of resources 26                   34                   -                  60                   

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 231,187         2,315,296     320,976         2,867,459     

Total net position 231,187$      2,315,296$   320,976$      2,867,459$   
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Midvale City  
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position Nonmajor Pro-
prietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 

Street 

Lighting Sanitation Telecom Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 408,126$      1,354,000$   555,971$      2,318,097$   

Total operating revenues 408,126         1,354,000     555,971         2,318,097     

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 11,301           14,673           -                  25,974           

Employee benefits 5,126             4,284             -                  9,410             

Administration 264,416         108,453         -                  372,869         

Street l ighting 85,307           -                  -                  85,307           

Waste disposal -                  1,185,445     -                  1,185,445     

Telecommunications -                  -                  965,249         965,249         

Total operating expenses 366,150         1,312,855     965,249         2,644,254     

Operating income (loss) 41,976           41,145           (409,278)       (326,157)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 5,338             2,962             4,152             12,452           

Gain/(Loss) on equity investment -                  185,021         -                  185,021         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 5,338             187,983         4,152             197,473         

Income before transfers 47,314           229,128         (405,126)       (128,684)       

Transfers in -                  8,100             702,484         710,584         

Change in net position 47,314           237,228         297,358         581,900         

Total net position - beginning 183,873         2,078,068     23,618           2,285,559     

Total net position - ending 231,187$      2,315,296$   320,976$      2,867,459$   
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Midvale City  

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Proprietary Funds  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Street Lighting Sanitation Telecom Total

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers 415,345$        1,345,391$    556,860$         2,317,596$     

Payments to suppliers (336,810)         (1,261,801)     (919,286)          (2,517,897)      

Payments to employees (16,336)           (21,448)           -                    (37,784)           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 62,199            62,142            (362,426)          (238,085)         

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 

Transfers (to) from other funds -                   8,100               702,484           710,584          

Decrease in contracts receivable -                   -                   13,080             13,080             

Decrease in notes receivable -                   -                   (295,604)          (295,604)         

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities -                   8,100               419,960           428,060          

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Decrease in notes payable -                   -                   (13,390)            (13,390)           

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities -                   -                   (13,390)            (13,390)           

Cash flows from investing activites

Interest received 5,338               2,962               4,152                12,452             

Net cash provided by investing activities 5,338               2,962               4,152                12,452             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 67,537            73,204            48,296             189,037          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 148,319          166,882          215                   315,416          

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 215,856          240,086          48,511             504,453          

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss) 41,976            41,145            (409,278)          (326,157)         

Depreciation -                   

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 1,264               (8,609)             (126)                  (7,471)              

Deposits 269                  283                  79,103             79,655             

Contracts receivable -                   -                   1,015                1,015               

Accounts payable 12,644            31,814            (33,140)            11,318             

Accrued liabilities 6,046               (2,491)             -                    3,555               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 62,199$          62,142$          (362,426)$       (238,085)$       
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Midvale City  
Combining Statement of Net Position—Internal Service Funds 
June 30, 2023 
 

Fleet IT Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted 2,987,418$       575,859$       3,563,277$     

Deposits 142                     15                    157                  

Total current assets 2,987,560          575,874         3,563,434       

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Automobiles, net 1,172,693          -                  1,172,693       

Machinery and equipment, net 581,207             198,109         779,316          

Total noncurrent assets 1,753,900          198,109         1,952,009       

Total assets 4,741,460          773,983         5,515,443       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions 20,146               -                  20,146             

Total deferred outflows of resources 20,146               -                  20,146             

LIABILITIES

Current l iabilities:

Accounts payable 12,964               19,457            32,421             

Accrued liabilities 5,551                  1,912              7,463               

Compensated absences 15,269               2,803              18,072             

Total current l iabilities 33,784               24,172            57,956             

Noncurrent l iabilities:

Compensated absences 2,564                  -                  2,564               

Net pension liability 11,943               -                  11,943             

Total noncurrent l iabilities 14,507               -                  14,507             

Total l iabilities 48,291               24,172            72,463             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 250                     -                  250                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 250                     -                  250                  

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 1,753,900          198,109         1,952,009       

Unrestricted 2,959,165          551,702         3,510,867       

Total net position 4,713,065$       749,811$       5,462,876$     
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Midvale City  
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Internal Service 
Funds  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fleet IT Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 1,072,319$       181,250$       1,253,569$     

Other 6,700                  -                  6,700               

Total operating revenues 1,079,019          181,250         1,260,269       

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 108,875             28,007            136,882          

Employee benefits 42,647               10,213            52,860             

Administration 242,892             167                 243,059          

Supplies and equipment 2,156                  97,677            99,833             

Repairs and maintenance 142,053             -                  142,053          

Depreciation expense 387,590             25,868            413,458          

Total operating expenses 926,213             161,932         1,088,145       

Operating income 152,806             19,318            172,124          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest expense 120,990             14,360            135,350          

Gain on disposal of equipment 7,010                  2,788              9,798               

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 128,000             17,148            145,148          

Income before transfers 280,806             36,466            317,272          

Transfers in -                      200,000         200,000          

Change in net position 280,806             236,466         517,272          

Total net position - beginning 4,432,259          513,345         4,945,604       

Total net position - ending 4,713,065$       749,811$       5,462,876$     
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Midvale City  
Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fleet IT Total

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers 1,264,666$   181,529$      1,446,195$   

Payments to suppliers (140,475)       (150,325)       (290,800)       

Payments for interfund services (242,892)       (167)               (243,059)       

Payments to employees (158,599)       (35,512)          (194,111)       

Net cash provided by

operating activities 722,700         (4,475)            718,225         

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 

Transfers from other funds -                  200,000         200,000         

Net cash provided by

noncapital financing activities -                  200,000         200,000         

Cash flows from capital and related

financing activities

Purchase of capital assets (825,535)       (45,828)          (871,364)       

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 73,960           2,788             76,748           

Net cash provided (used) by capital

and related financing activities (751,575)       (43,040)          (794,616)       

Cash flows from investing activites

Interest received 120,990         14,360           135,350         

Net cash provided by investing activities 120,990         14,360           135,350         

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents 92,115           166,845         258,959         

Cash and cash equivalents,

beginning of year 2,895,303     409,014         3,304,317     

-                  Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,987,418$   575,859$      3,563,277$   

Reconciliation of operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities

Operating income 152,806$      19,318$         172,124$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating

income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation 387,590         25,868           413,458         

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 183,839         -                  183,839         

Deposit 1,808             279                 2,087             

Accounts payable 3,734             (52,648)          (48,914)          

Accrued liabilities (7,077)            2,708             (4,369)            

Net cash provided by operating activities 722,700$      (4,475)$          718,225$      
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Midvale City  
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual     
Capital Projects Fund (Major Fund)  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

REVENUES

Intergovernmental 605,000$            605,000$            558,397$            (46,603)$             

Taxes 1,000,000          1,000,000          1,024,138           24,138                 

Interest income -                       -                       164,898               164,898               

Total revenues 1,605,000          1,605,000          1,747,433           142,433               

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 2,592,600          4,329,347          1,580,832           2,748,515           

Total expenditures 2,592,600          4,329,347          1,580,832           2,748,515           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (987,600)            (2,724,347)         166,601               2,890,948           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in(out) 987,600              2,724,347          1,987,600           (736,747)             

Total other financing sources 987,600              2,724,347          1,987,600           (736,747)             

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     2,154,201           2,154,201$         

Fund balance at beginning of year 4,363,744           

Fund balance at end of year 6,517,945$         

Budgeted Amounts
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Midvale City  
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual     
Debt Service Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
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STATISTICAL SECTION  

(UNAUDITED) 

 

This part of Midvale City Corporations’ Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents detailed information as a con-

text for better understanding the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplemen-

tary information.  

The statistical section consists of five main categories:  

Financial Trends (Pages 105-109) 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance and 

well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity (Pages 110-118) 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue sources.  

Debt Capacity (Pages 119-123) 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of outstand-

ing debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.  

Demographic and Economic Information (Pages 124-126) 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within 

which the City’s financial activities take place.  

Operating Information (Pages 127-128) 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the 

City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.  
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9,125,162
           

6,034,643
           

2,562,715
           

7,266,811
           

12,982,895
         

17,806,804
         

20,372,945
         

U
n

re
stricte

d
(2,824,563)

       
(6,854,925)

       
(7,257,980)

       
(5,630,987)

         
(1,692,808)

         
2,354,087

           
16,823,893

         
17,826,938

         
17,001,530

         
23,286,568

         

To
tal p

rim
ary go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t

  n
e

t p
o

sitio
n

94,406,723
$    

95,012,807
$    

99,526,716
$    

102,230,048
$    

109,697,046
$    

105,572,801
$    

108,451,022
$    

116,605,917
$    

122,876,992
$    

133,857,790
$    

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
C

h
an

ge
s in

 N
e

t P
o

siti
o

n
 

(A
ccru

al B
asis o

f A
cco

u
n

ti
n

g)  
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

Exp
e

n
se

s

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s:

G
e

n
e

ral go
ve

rn
m

e
n

t
5,256,415

$         
5,666,704

$         
5,539,259

$         
5,786,432

$            
6,671,596

$            
13,602,223

$         
10,545,403

$         
8,723,238

$            
11,825,697

$     
6,018,102

$        

P
u

b
lic safe

ty (1)
6,050,012

            
6,383,475

            
6,610,764

            
7,013,851

              
7,290,047

              
8,519,079

              
9,002,087

              
9,401,425

              
10,285,577

        
11,795,690

        

H
igh

w
ays an

d
 p

u
b

lic im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

2,967,910
            

2,500,529
            

1,890,231
            

2,297,368
              

2,485,064
              

3,196,231
              

2,598,581
              

2,981,820
              

2,415,708
          

3,824,707
          

P
arks, re

cre
atio

n
 an

d
 p

u
b

lic p
ro

p
e

rty
715,784

               
813,033

               
931,303

               
992,330

                  
1,384,148

              
1,421,361

              
1,579,727

              
1,634,530

              
1,594,145

          
1,493,263

          

R
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
704,130

               
618,747

               
1,649,138

            
3,671,182

              
3,296,665

              
8,742,123

              
3,336,865

              
2,378,196

              
2,840,234

          
2,180,096

          

In
te

re
st o

n
 lo

n
g-te

rm
 d

e
b

t
1,801,668

            
1,738,207

            
2,137,089

            
2,008,336

              
2,704,350

              
2,930,481

              
2,716,943

              
1,745,297

              
1,666,770

          
1,527,618

          

To
tal go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t activitie

s e
xp

e
n

se
17,495,919

         
17,720,695

         
18,757,784

         
21,769,499

            
23,831,870

            
38,411,498

            
29,779,606

            
26,864,506

            
30,628,131

        
26,839,475

        

B
u

sin
e

ss-typ
e

 activitie
s:

W
ate

r (2) (5)
5,170,826

            
3,993,392

            
3,960,091

            
4,354,475

              
4,361,331

              
4,072,868

              
5,262,930

              
5,193,597

              
5,472,697

          
5,710,183

          

Se
w

e
r (5)

-
                        

1,615,068
            

1,910,718
            

1,927,068
              

1,883,291
              

2,265,343
              

2,397,629
              

2,523,972
              

2,735,782
          

3,147,616
          

Sto
rm

 w
ate

r
1,366,964

            
1,181,903

            
1,315,614

            
1,429,125

              
1,514,929

              
1,692,430

              
1,770,290

              
1,761,979

              
1,806,723

          
1,864,144

          

San
itatio

n
951,112

               
918,913

               
932,441

               
969,261

                  
1,031,396

              
1,155,070

              
1,187,193

              
1,173,185

              
1,209,024

          
1,312,855

          

Te
le

co
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s (3)

808,618
               

825,907
               

901,913
               

864,343
                  

889,011
                  

898,565
                  

917,325
                  

935,730
                  

948,418
              

965,249
              

A
m

b
u

lan
ce

 (1)
-

                        
-

                        
-

                        
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                       
-

                       

Stre
e

t ligh
tin

g (4)
160,791

               
426,829

               
624,863

               
341,979

                  
381,608

                  
392,701

                  
364,789

                  
398,298

                  
321,170

              
366,150

              

Eq
u

ity in
ve

stm
e

n
t in

co
m

e
(33,824)

                
(12,840)

                
-

                        
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                       
-

                       

To
tal b

u
sin

e
ss-typ

e
 activitie

s
8,424,487

            
8,949,172

            
9,645,640

            
9,886,251

              
10,061,566

            
10,476,977

            
11,900,156

            
11,986,761

            
12,493,814

        
13,366,197

        

To
tal p

rim
ary go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t e

xp
e

n
se

s
25,920,406

         
26,669,867

         
28,403,424

         
31,655,750

            
33,893,436

            
48,888,475

            
41,679,762

            
38,851,267

            
43,121,945

        
40,205,672

        

P
ro

gram
 re

ve
n

u
e

s

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s:

C
h

arge
s fo

r se
rvice

s

G
e

n
e

ral go
ve

rn
m

e
n

t
2,656,868

            
2,722,837

            
2,743,920

            
2,247,640

              
2,236,403

              
2,698,055

              
2,967,511

              
3,180,865

              
3,066,996

          
1,336,045

          

P
u

b
lic safe

ty
1,357,735

            
1,633,011

            
1,030,311

            
748,505

                  
922,257

                  
958,288

                  
843,406

                  
701,178

                  
844,694

              
844,493

              

H
igh

w
ays an

d
 p

u
b

lic im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

-
                        

-
                        

-
                        

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                       

-
                       

P
arks, re

cre
atio

n
 an

d
 p

u
b

lic p
ro

p
e

rty
60,625

                  
67,300

                  
61,950

                  
42,450

                    
24,600

                    
27,150

                    
22,040

                    
20,340

                    
34,790

                
26,850

                

O
p

e
ratin

g gran
ts an

d
 co

n
trib

u
tio

n
s

4,683,624
            

4,281,630
            

5,965,959
            

5,840,869
              

6,200,034
              

6,527,830
              

7,773,608
              

9,275,664
              

7,136,801
          

7,101,721
          

C
ap

ital gran
ts an

d
 co

n
trib

u
tio

n
s

793,079
               

837,135
               

1,848,430
            

1,158,697
              

1,793,150
              

7,567,205
              

4,184,622
              

2,688,476
              

3,300,243
          

3,889,127
          

To
tal go

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s p
ro

gram
 re

ve
n

u
e

s
9,551,931

            
9,541,913

            
11,650,570

         
10,038,161

            
11,176,444

            
17,778,528

            
15,791,187

            
15,866,523

            
14,383,524

        
13,198,236

        

B
u

sin
e

ss-typ
e

 activitie
s:

C
h

arge
s fo

r se
rvice

s

W
ate

r (2) (5)
5,658,012

            
4,267,495

            
4,284,361

            
4,550,934

              
4,738,786

              
4,667,077

              
5,208,509

              
5,700,724

              
7,588,642

          
6,034,039

          

Se
w

e
r (5)

-
                        

1,503,752
            

1,737,379
            

1,961,362
              

2,228,967
              

2,449,758
              

2,635,025
              

2,810,880
              

3,071,693
          

3,373,084
          

Sto
rm

 w
ate

r
1,042,571

            
1,632,166

            
1,648,039

            
1,812,768

              
1,824,476

              
1,828,209

              
2,077,019

              
2,134,157

              
2,162,486

          
2,183,691

          

San
itatio

n
999,327

               
1,010,970

            
924,037

               
954,956

                  
956,399

                  
1,050,989

              
1,151,382

              
1,283,140

              
1,309,536

          
1,354,000

          

Te
le

co
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s (3)

15,816
                  

33,421
                  

17,230
                  

21,390
                    

27,264
                    

20,256
                    

20,786
                    

21,259
                    

16,607
                

555,971
              

A
m

b
u

lan
ce

 (1)
-

                        
-

                        
-

                        
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                       
-

                       

Stre
e

t ligh
tin

g (4)
242,776

               
248,654

               
372,896

               
381,529

                  
381,507

                  
384,828

                  
390,487

                  
402,078

                  
407,830

              
408,126

              

O
p

e
ratin

g gran
ts an

d
 co

n
trib

u
tio

n
s

116,744
               

117,632
               

117,886
               

115,885
                  

111,221
                  

106,321
                  

100,847
                  

49,170
                    

-
                       

-
                       

C
ap

ital gran
ts an

d
 co

n
trib

u
tio

n
s

-
                        

-
                        

-
                        

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                       

-
                       

To
tal b

u
sin

e
ss-typ

e
 activitie

s p
ro

gram
 re

ve
n

u
e

s
8,075,246

            
8,814,090

            
9,101,828

            
9,798,824

              
10,268,620

            
10,507,438

            
11,584,055

            
12,401,408

            
14,556,795

        
13,908,911

        

To
tal p

rim
ary go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t p

ro
gram

 re
ve

n
u

e
s

17,627,177
$       

18,356,003
$       

20,752,398
$       

19,836,985
$         

21,445,064
$         

28,285,966
$         

27,375,242
$         

28,267,931
$         

28,940,319
$     

27,107,147
$     

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
C

h
an

ge
s in

 N
e

t P
o

siti
o

n
 (C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 
(A

ccru
al B

asis o
f A

cco
u

n
ti

n
g)  

Last Te
n

 Fiscal Ye
ars  

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

N
e

t (Exp
e

n
se

)/R
e

ve
n

u
e

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s
(7,943,988)

$        
(8,178,782)

$        
(7,107,214)

$        
(11,731,338)

$        
(12,655,426)

$        
(20,632,970)

$        
(13,988,419)

$        
(10,997,983)

$        
(16,244,607)

$    
(13,641,239)

$    

B
u

sin
e

ss-typ
e

 activitie
s

(349,241)
              

(135,082)
              

(543,812)
              

(87,427)
                  

207,054
                  

30,461
                    

(316,101)
                

414,647
                  

2,062,981
          

542,714
              

To
tal p

rim
ary go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t n

e
t (e

xp
e

n
se

)/re
ve

n
u

e
(8,293,229)

          
(8,313,864)

          
(7,651,026)

          
(11,818,765)

          
(12,448,372)

          
(20,602,509)

          
(14,304,520)

          
(10,583,336)

          
(14,181,626)

      
(13,098,525)

      

G
e

n
e

ral re
ve

n
u

e
s

an
d

 o
th

e
r ch

an
ge

s in
 n

e
t p

o
sitio

n

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s:

Taxe
s

P
ro

p
e

rty taxe
s

1,081,837
            

1,145,102
            

1,178,525
            

3,202,775
              

3,183,212
              

3,129,874
              

3,449,391
              

4,110,411
              

4,645,942
          

5,813,422
          

Sale
s taxe

s
5,930,672

            
6,221,500

            
6,463,225

            
7,128,932

              
7,382,052

              
7,695,281

              
8,967,771

              
10,434,898

            
12,037,076

        
12,306,587

        

Te
le

co
m

m
 an

d
 fran

ch
ise

 taxe
s

2,832,277
            

2,764,227
            

2,883,419
            

3,196,182
              

3,081,826
              

2,938,060
              

2,757,554
              

2,723,703
              

2,799,999
          

3,669,110
          

In
te

re
st in

co
m

e
85,590

                  
46,144

                  
131,625

               
153,422

                  
416,810

                  
731,832

                  
825,390

                  
178,236

                  
422

                      
1,068,579

          

G
ain

 o
n

 sale
 an

d
 d

isp
o

sal o
f asse

ts
-

                        
2,598

                    
391,405

               
134,298

                  
524,778

                  
918,270

                  
239,893

                  
253,291

                  
72,399

                
7,722

                  

M
isce

llan
e

o
u

s
124,783

               
370,476

               
1,018,859

            
683,171

                  
607,715

                  
727,129

                  
697,865

                  
808,920

                  
719,309

              
814,765

              

D
e

ve
lo

p
e

r co
n

trib
u

tio
n

s
-

                        
-

                        
-

                        
-

                           
4,542,000

              
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                       
-

                       

Sp
e

cial ite
m

 - tfr o
f p

u
b

lic safe
ty to

 o
th

e
r go

vt
-

                        
-

                        
-

                        
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                           
-

                       
-

                       

Tran
sfe

rs - n
e

t
(741,300)

              
(917,100)

              
(920,600)

              
(824,900)

                
(850,000)

                
(850,000)

                
(815,000)

                
(705,586)

                
(820,369)

            
(710,584)

            

To
tal go

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s
9,313,859

            
9,632,947

            
11,146,458

         
13,673,880

            
18,888,393

            
15,290,446

            
16,122,864

            
17,803,873

            
19,454,778

        
22,969,600

        

B
u

sin
e

ss-typ
e

 activitie
s:

In
te

re
st in

co
m

e
40,015

                  
47,647

                  
40,667

                  
43,866

                    
77,838

                    
215,118

                  
127,932

                  
67,539

                    
(4,231)

                 
264,003

              

Eq
u

ity in
ve

stm
e

n
t (lo

ss)
-

                        
-

                        
57,210

                  
(20,549)

                  
99,139

                    
122,700

                  
116,945

                  
161,233

                  
181,786

              
185,021

              

C
ap

ital co
n

trib
u

tio
n

s fro
m

 o
th

e
r go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t

-
                        

-
                        

-
                        

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                           

-
                       

-
                       

Tran
sfe

rs - n
e

t
741,300

               
917,100

               
920,600

               
824,900

                  
850,000

                  
850,000

                  
815,000

                  
705,586

                  
820,369

              
710,584

              

To
tal b

u
sin

e
ss-typ

e
 activitie

s
781,315

               
964,747

               
1,018,477

            
848,217

                  
1,026,977

              
1,187,818

              
1,059,877

              
934,358

                  
997,924

              
1,159,608

          

To
tal p

rim
ary go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t

10,095,174
         

10,597,694
         

12,164,935
         

14,522,097
            

19,915,370
            

16,478,264
            

17,182,741
            

18,738,231
            

20,452,702
        

24,129,208
        

C
h

an
ge

s in
 N

e
t P

o
sitio

n

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal activitie

s
1,369,871

            
1,454,165

            
4,039,244

            
1,942,542

              
6,232,967

              
(5,342,524)

            
2,134,445

              
6,805,890

              
3,210,171

          
9,328,361

          

B
u

sin
e

ss-typ
e

 activitie
s

432,074
               

829,665
               

474,665
               

760,790
                  

1,234,031
              

1,218,279
              

743,776
                  

1,349,005
              

3,060,905
          

1,702,322
          

To
tal p

rim
ary go

ve
rn

m
e

n
t

1,801,945
$         

2,283,830
$         

4,513,909
$         

2,703,332
$            

7,466,998
$            

(4,124,245)
$          

2,878,221
$            

8,154,895
$            

6,271,076
$        

11,030,683
$     

N
o

te
s:

(1) B
e

gin
n

in
g in

 FY 2012, M
id

vale
 w

as an
n

e
xe

d
 b

y th
e

 Salt Lake
 V

alle
y Fire

 Se
rvice

 A
re

a, a se
p

arate
 taxin

g e
n

tity.  Fire
 an

d
 am

b
u

lan
ce

 se
rvice

 are
 n

o
w

 p
ro

vid
e

d
 b

y U
n

ifie
d

 Fire
 A

u
th

o
rity.

(2) Th
e

 Te
le

co
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s Fu

n
d

 w
as e

stab
lish

e
d

 in
 FY 2012 to

 im
p

ro
ve

 fib
e

r o
p

tic cap
ab

ilitie
s fo

r b
u

sin
e

sse
s an

d
 re

sid
e

n
ts. 

(3) Th
e

 Stre
e

t Ligh
tin

g Fu
n

d
 w

as e
stab

lish
e

d
 in

 FY 2013 to
 p

ro
vid

e
 stre

e
t ligh

ts city-w
id

e
, an

d
 to

 sw
itch

 all ligh
tin

g to
 m

o
re

 e
fficie

n
t LED

.

(4) W
ate

r an
d

 Se
w

e
r w

e
re

 re
p

o
rte

d
 as o

n
e

 fu
n

d
 p

rio
r to

 2015. In
 2015, th

e
y w

e
re

 sp
lit in

to
 tw

o
 se

p
arate

 fu
n

d
s.

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
Fu

n
d

 B
alan

ce
s o

f G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal Fu

n
d

s 
(A

ccru
al B

asis o
f A

cco
u

n
ti

n
g)  

Last Te
n

 Fiscal Ye
ars  

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

G
e

n
e

ral Fu
n

d

N
o

n
sp

e
n

d
ab

le
-

$                  
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   

R
e

stricte
d

 fo
r B

&
C

 R
o

ad
 Fu

n
d

s
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
293,871

            
323,328

            

R
e

stricte
d

 fo
r D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

264,991
            

A
ssign

e
d

 fo
r su

b
. ye

ar ap
p

ro
p

.
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
326,577

            
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     

U
n

assign
e

d
2,714,040

        
2,752,356

        
2,407,701

        
3,784,485

        
3,858,326

        
3,797,448

        
4,096,174

        
7,319,448

        
7,869,041

        
8,040,274

        

To
tal G

e
n

e
ral Fu

n
d

2,714,040
$      

2,752,356
$      

2,407,701
$      

3,784,485
$      

3,858,326
$      

3,797,448
$      

4,422,751
$      

7,319,448
$      

8,162,912
$      

8,628,593
$      

A
ll O

th
e

r G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal Fu

n
d

s

N
o

n
sp

e
n

d
ab

le
150,130

$         
150,130

$          
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   

R
e

stricte
d

 fo
r d

e
b

t se
rvice

246,375
            

252,465
            

247,011
            

247,544
            

248,917
            

21
                       

224
                    

140
                    

233
                    

3,482
                 

R
e

stricte
d

 fo
r cap

ital p
ro

je
cts

3,466,803
        

-
                     

-
                     

8,267,104
        

6,264,782
        

2,775,343
        

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

-
                     

R
e

stricte
d

 fo
r re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
32,305

              
387

                    
5,348,949

        
140,597

            
23,442

              
-

                     
5,050,212

        
9,247,340

        
1,212,912

        
1,264,140

        

R
e

stricte
d

 fo
r d

e
b

t se
rvice

-
                     

630,230
            

1,577,544
        

1,585,165
        

21,407,132
      

22,341,706
      

1,842,389
        

1,818,855
        

607,053
            

2,391,349
        

A
ssign

e
d

 fo
r sp

e
cial re

ve
n

u
e

 fu
n

d
s

951,388
            

2,109,836
        

2,705,141
        

2,160,877
        

2,638,920
        

4,366,777
        

48,137
              

56,312
              

11,622,862
      

14,906,632
      

A
ssign

e
d

 fo
r cap

ital p
ro

je
cts

3,387,910
        

2,020,096
        

1,710,787
        

1,579,634
        

2,753,808
        

3,620,104
        

214,099
            

1,860,248
        

4,363,744
        

6,517,945
        

A
ssign

e
d

 fo
r su

b
. ye

ar ap
p

ro
p

.
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
3,698,153

        
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     

To
tal O

th
e

r G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
tal Fu

n
d

s
8,234,911

$      
5,163,144

$      
11,589,432

$    
13,980,921

$    
33,337,001

$    
33,103,951

$    
10,853,214

$    
12,982,895

$    
17,806,804

$    
25,083,548

$    

To
tal G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

tal Fu
n

d
s

N
o

n
sp

e
n

d
ab

le
150,130

$         
150,130

$          
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   
-

$                   

R
e

stricte
d

3,745,483
        

883,082
            

7,173,504
        

10,240,410
      

27,944,273
      

25,117,070
      

6,892,825
        

11,066,335
      

2,114,069
        

4,243,808
        

A
ssign

e
d

4,339,298
        

4,129,932
        

4,415,928
        

3,740,511
        

5,392,728
        

7,986,881
        

4,286,966
        

1,916,560
        

15,986,606
      

21,428,059
      

U
n

assign
e

d
2,714,040

        
2,752,356

        
2,407,701

        
3,784,485

        
3,858,326

        
3,797,448

        
4,096,174

        
7,319,448

        
7,869,041

        
8,040,274

        

To
tal G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

tal Fu
n

d
s

10,948,951
$   

7,915,500
$      

13,997,133
$    

17,765,406
$    

37,195,327
$    

36,901,399
$    

15,275,965
$    

20,302,343
$    

25,969,716
$    

33,712,141
$    

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
C

h
an

ge
s in

 Fu
n

d
 B

alan
ce

s o
f G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

tal Fu
n

d
s 

(A
ccru

al B
asis o

f A
cco

u
n

ti
n

g)  
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s:

Taxe
s (1)

9,844,786
$              

10,130,829
$            

10,525,169
$            

13,527,890
$            

13,647,089
$            

13,763,215
$            

15,174,717
$            

17,269,013
$            

19,483,018
$            

19,787,577
$            

Lice
n

se
s an

d
 p

e
rm

its
887,041

                    
929,422

                    
974,711

                    
583,437

                    
600,158

                    
893,520

                    
890,117

                    
986,962

                    
711,320

                    
892,307

                    

In
te

rgo
ve

rn
m

e
n

tal
5,476,703

                
5,118,765

                
7,814,389

                
6,999,567

                
7,993,184

                
14,095,036

              
11,958,229

              
11,964,140

              
10,437,044

              
12,992,390

              

C
h

arge
s fo

r se
rvice

s
2,088,987

                
1,891,997

                
1,924,706

                
1,717,633

                
1,674,434

                
1,831,684

                
2,111,583

                
2,214,242

                
2,404,748

                
485,746

                    

Fin
e

s an
d

 fo
rfe

itu
re

s
1,257,733

                
1,528,308

                
1,236,006

                
974,651

                    
992,776

                    
958,066

                    
820,736

                    
701,178

                    
830,411

                    
829,335

                    

In
te

re
st in

co
m

e
78,952

                      
46,144

                      
131,625

                    
153,422

                    
416,810

                    
731,832

                    
825,390

                    
178,236

                    
422

                            
933,229

                    

M
isce

llan
e

o
u

s
138,886

                    
370,476

                    
1,018,859

                
683,172

                    
607,719

                    
727,129

                    
697,866

                    
808,920

                    
719,309

                    
808,065

                    

To
tal R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

19,773,088
              

20,015,941
              

23,625,465
              

24,639,772
              

25,932,170
              

33,000,482
              

32,478,638
              

34,122,691
              

34,586,272
              

36,728,649
              

Exp
e

n
d

itu
re

s:

G
e

n
e

ral go
ve

rn
m

e
n

t
3,832,807

                
3,826,386

                
4,095,809

                
3,966,525

                
4,130,071

                
4,472,441

                
5,001,096

                
5,405,077

                
5,233,244

                
4,371,305

                

P
u

b
lic safe

ty (2)
6,008,069

                
6,392,114

                
6,581,069

                
6,904,536

                
7,168,010

                
8,381,646

                
8,968,003

                
9,306,093

                
10,322,679

              
11,698,303

              

H
igh

w
ays an

d
 p

u
b

lic im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

1,068,817
                

812,797
                    

784,451
                    

759,449
                    

881,927
                    

1,453,828
                

1,208,398
                

1,781,838
                

1,562,778
                

2,258,794
                

P
arks, re

cre
atio

n
, an

d
 p

u
b

lic p
ro

p
e

rty
658,193

                    
736,565

                    
841,194

                    
892,240

                    
978,895

                    
1,007,424

                
1,142,879

                
1,175,194

                
1,131,749

                
1,046,241

                

R
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t (3)
719,130

                    
3,565,775

                
1,654,141

                
2,208,413

                
3,311,665

                
8,757,123

                
3,351,865

                
2,378,196

                
2,840,234

                
2,180,731

                

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity an
d

 e
co

n
o

m
ic d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

1,264,073
                

1,281,767
                

1,324,787
                

1,230,080
                

1,458,891
                

1,589,996
                

1,291,148
                

1,424,506
                

1,312,434
                

1,292,623
                

C
ap

ital o
u

tlay - n
o

n
cap

italize
d

31,591
                      

446,139
                    

12,420
                      

1,690,088
                

1,296,156
                

7,141,163
                

3,612,289
                

1,769,117
                

5,454,922
                

102,790
                    

C
ap

ital o
u

tlay - cap
italize

d
7,344,480

                
4,350,028

                
10,419,056

              
7,468,225

                
1,322,370

                
2,422,258

                
3,556,068

                
1,919,894

                
423,503

                    
1,481,062

                

P
le

d
ge

 p
m

t - in
te

rlo
cal gu

aran
te

e
 agre

e
m

e
n

t (4)
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             

D
e

b
t se

rvice
 p

rin
cip

al
1,370,000

                
1,670,000

                
1,745,000

                
1,995,000

                
2,831,000

                
3,159,000

                
21,963,000

              
2,940,000

                
3,242,717

                
3,657,432

                

D
e

b
t se

rvice
 in

te
re

st
1,837,612

                
1,771,647

                
1,874,301

                
1,993,689

                
2,520,085

                
3,098,685

                
3,215,623

                
1,987,391

                
1,969,927

                
1,969,192

                

B
o

n
d

 issu
an

ce
 co

sts
2,000

                         
-

                             
257,080

                    
145,321

                    
228,693

                    
131,530

                    
-

                             
-

                             
4,550

                         
4,550

                         

To
tal Exp

e
n

d
itu

re
s

24,136,772
              

24,853,218
              

29,589,308
              

29,253,566
              

26,127,763
              

41,615,094
              

53,310,369
              

30,087,306
              

33,498,737
              

30,063,023
              

Exce
ss o

f re
ve

n
u

e
 o

ve
r (u

n
d

e
r) e

xp
e

n
d

itu
re

s
(4,363,684)

               
(4,837,277)

               
(5,963,843)

               
(4,613,794)

               
(195,593)

                  
(8,614,612)

               
(20,831,731)

            
4,035,385

                
1,087,535

                
6,665,626

                

O
th

e
r fin

an
cin

g so
u

rce
s (u

se
s):

P
ro

ce
e

d
s fro

m
 sale

 o
f asse

ts
246,013

                    
2,934,626

                
12,976

                      
8,435

                         
219,891

                    
513,156

                    
56,297

                      
700

                            
207

                            
17,970

                      

P
ro

ce
e

d
s fro

m
 cap

ital le
ase

/n
o

te
 p

ayab
le

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

-
                             

P
ro

ce
e

d
s fro

m
 b

o
n

d
 issu

an
ce

-
                             

-
                             

12,961,000
              

9,146,632
                

20,255,623
              

8,657,528
                

-
                             

2,163,893
                

5,500,000
                

-
                             

D
isco

u
n

t o
n

 b
o

n
d

 issu
an

ce
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             

Sp
e

cial ite
m

 - p
u

b
lic safe

ty tran
sfe

r (2)
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             

C
o

n
trib

u
tio

n
 fro

m
 o

th
e

r go
ve

rn
m

e
n

t
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             

Tran
sfe

rs in
3,608,583

                
1,173,956

                
2,346,242

                
11,344,438

              
1,887,831

                
6,836,195

                
2,082,217

                
202,887

                    
2,405,624

                
3,594,693

                

Tran
sfe

rs o
u

t
(4,349,883)

               
(2,304,756)

               
(3,274,742)

               
(12,117,438)

            
(2,737,831)

               
(7,686,195)

               
(2,932,217)

               
(1,376,487)

               
(3,325,993)

               
(4,505,277)

               

To
tal o

th
e

r fin
an

cin
g so

u
rce

s (u
se

s)
(495,287)

                  
1,803,826

                
12,045,476

              
8,382,067

                
19,625,514

              
8,320,684

                
(793,703)

                  
990,993

                    
4,579,838

                
(892,614)

                  

N
e

t ch
an

ge
 in

 Fu
n

d
 B

alan
ce

(4,858,971)
$            

(3,033,451)
$            

6,081,633
$              

3,768,273
$              

19,429,921
$            

(293,928)
$                

(21,625,434)
$          

5,026,378
$              

5,667,373
$              

5,773,012
$              

D
e

b
t se

rvice
 as a p

e
rce

n
tage

o
f n

o
n

-cap
ital e

xp
e

n
d

itu
re

s:
19.1%

16.8%
18.9%

18.3%
21.6%

16.0%
50.6%

17.5%
15.8%

19.7%

N
o

te
s:

(1)  B
e

gin
n

in
g in

 FY 2014, th
e

 U
tah

 State
 A

u
d

ito
r's O

ffice
 re

q
u

ire
d

 classificatio
n

 o
f tax in

cre
m

e
n

t re
ve

n
u

e
 re

ce
ive

d
 b

y a R
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t A
ge

n
cy fro

m
 o

th
e

r taxin
g e

n
titie

s as "In
te

rgo
ve

rn
m

e
n

tal R
e

ve
n

u
e

" in
ste

ad
 o

f "P
ro

p
e

rty Taxe
s".

P
ro

p
e

rty taxe
s re

p
o

rte
d

 fo
r p

rio
r ye

ars w
h

ich
 re

p
re

se
n

t "co
n

trib
u

tio
n

s fro
m

 o
th

e
r go

ve
rn

m
e

n
ts" are

 as fo
llo

w
s: 2013 - $2,009,800; 2012 - $1,512,800; 2011 - $1,356,300; 2010 - $972,900.

(2)  B
e

gin
n

in
g in

 FY 2012, th
e

 Salt Lake
 V

alle
y Fire

 Se
rvice

 A
re

a (SLV
FSA

) b
e

gan
 p

ro
vid

in
g fire

 se
rvice

 to
 M

id
vale

 C
ity.  SLV

FSA
 is a taxin

g e
n

tity an
d

 co
lle

cts p
ro

p
e

rty tax d
ire

ctly fro
m

 M
id

vale
 re

sid
e

n
ts to

 p
ro

vid
e

 se
rvice

s.

(3)  M
id

vale
 C

ity is o
n

e
 o

f 11 fo
u

n
d

in
g m

e
m

b
e

rs o
f th

e
 U

tah
 Te

le
co

m
m

u
n

icatio
n

s O
p

e
n

 In
frastru

ctu
re

 N
e

tw
o

rk (U
TO

P
IA

).  B
e

gin
n

in
g in

 FY 2013, p
le

d
ge

 p
aym

e
n

ts to
 U

TO
P

IA
 are

 p
aid

 fro
m

 th
e

 Te
le

co
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s En

te
rp

rise
 Fu

n
d

.

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

tal A
cti

viti
e

s Tax R
e

ve
n

u
e

 b
y So

u
rce

 
(M

o
d

ifi
e

d
 A

ccru
a

l B
asis o

f A
cco

u
n

ti
n

g)  
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

Te
le

co
m

-

Fiscal
U

n
ifo

rm
Fran

ch
ise

 an
d

m
u

n
icatio

n
s

Tran
sie

n
t

To
tal

Ye
ar

P
ro

p
e

rty Tax
V

e
h

icle
 Tax

Sale
s Tax

En
e

rgy Tax
Tax

R
o

o
m

 Tax
Tax R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

2014
1,081,836

$                
113,950

$                    
5,930,672

$                
2,102,495

$                
495,776

$                    
120,057

$                    
9,844,786

$                

2015
1,145,102

                  
113,980

                      
6,221,500

                  
2,086,631

                  
429,025

                      
134,591

                      
10,130,829

                

2016
1,178,525

                  
126,648

                      
6,463,225

                  
2,192,132

                  
425,164

                      
139,475

                      
10,525,169

                

2017
(3)

3,202,775
                  

417,806
                      

7,128,932
                  

2,205,528
                  

407,915
                      

164,934
                      

13,527,890
                

2018
3,183,212

                  
333,097

                      
7,382,052

                  
2,212,291

                  
356,013

                      
180,425

                      
13,647,090

                

2019
(4)

3,129,874
                  

354,332
                      

7,695,281
                  

2,115,894
                  

300,028
                      

167,806
                      

13,763,215
                

2020
3,449,390

                  
294,748

                      
8,967,771

                  
2,083,511

                  
234,626

                      
144,669

                      
15,174,716

                

2021
3,273,367

                  
289,817

                      
10,434,898

                
2,118,393

                  
183,177

                      
132,316

                      
16,431,968

                

2022
3,303,528

                  
329,351

                      
12,037,076

                
2,062,780

                  
190,229

                      
217,639

                      
18,140,605

                

2023
(3)

3,636,704
                  

345,594
                      

12,306,587
                

2,774,920
                  

312,092
                      

236,504
                      

19,612,400
                

N
o

te
s:

(1) P
rio

r to
 Fiscal Ye

ar 2014, th
e

 M
id

vale
 R

e
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t A

ge
n

cy (R
D

A
) re

co
rd

e
d

 p
ro

p
e

rty tax re
ve

n
u

e
s re

ce
ive

d
 fro

m
 o

th
e

r p
articip

atin
g taxin

g

     e
n

titie
s as "p

ro
p

e
rty tax re

ve
n

u
e

".  Th
e

 U
tah

 State
 A

u
d

ito
r n

o
w

 re
q

u
ire

s th
e

se
 re

ve
n

u
e

s to
 b

e
 re

co
rd

e
d

 as "co
n

trib
u

tio
n

s fro
m

 o
th

e
r

     go
ve

rn
m

e
n

ts".  P
ro

p
e

rty taxe
s fo

r p
rio

r ye
ars w

h
ich

 re
p

re
se

n
t "co

n
trib

u
tio

n
s fro

m
 o

th
e

r go
ve

rn
m

e
n

ts" are
 as fo

llo
w

s:  

     2013- $2,009,800; 2012- $1,512,800; 2011- $1,356,300; 2010- $972,900.

(2) In
 Fiscal Ye

ar 2012, M
id

vale
 w

as an
n

e
xe

d
 in

to
 th

e
 Salt Lake

 V
alle

y Fire
 Se

rvice
 A

re
a (SLV

FSA
).  SLV

FSA
 h

as taxin
g au

th
o

rity, an
d

     p
ro

p
e

rty taxe
s p

aid
 b

y M
id

vale
 b

u
sin

e
ss an

d
 re

sid
e

n
ts fo

r fire
 p

ro
te

ctio
n

 se
rvice

 are
 n

o
w

 p
aid

 d
ire

ctly to
 SLV

FSA
.  

(3) In
 Fiscal Ye

ar 2017 &
 2023, M

id
vale

 in
cre

ase
d

 it's p
ro

p
e

rty tax rate
.

(4) In
 Ju

n
e

 2019, M
id

vale
 starte

d
 re

ce
ivin

g ad
d

itio
n

al sale
s tax re

ve
n

u
e

 fo
r tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

.
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
A

sse
sse

d
 V

alu
e

 an
d

 Esti
m

ate
d

 A
ctu

al V
alu

e
 o

f Taxab
le

 P
ro

p
erty

 
Last Te

n
 C

ale
n

d
ar Ye

ars 

A
sse

sse
d

Estim
ate

d
Estim

ate
d

Estim
ate

d
Estim

ate
d

valu
e

 as a

A
sse

sse
d

M
arke

t
A

sse
sse

d
M

arke
t

A
sse

sse
d

M
arke

t
A

sse
sse

d
M

arke
t

p
e

rce
n

tage
 o

f
D

ire
ct

Ye
ar

V
alu

e
V

alu
e

V
alu

e
V

alu
e

V
alu

e
V

alu
e

V
alu

e
V

alu
e

m
arke

t valu
e

Tax R
ate

2012
876,577,808

$        
1,593,777,833

$        
579,327,580

$        
579,327,580

$        
111,077,083

$        
111,077,083

$        
1,566,982,471

$        
2,284,182,496

$        
68.60%

0.000687

2013
939,637,475

          
1,708,431,773

          
590,548,960

          
590,548,960

          
119,788,367

          
119,788,367

          
1,649,974,802

          
2,418,769,100

          
68.22%

0.000658

2014
1,039,080,432

      
1,889,237,148

          
630,681,800

          
630,681,800

          
143,089,908

          
143,089,908

          
1,812,852,140

          
2,663,008,856

          
68.08%

0.000623

2015
1,116,706,717

      
2,030,375,849

          
673,315,410

          
673,315,410

          
151,815,849

          
151,815,849

          
1,941,837,976

          
2,855,507,108

          
68.00%

0.000609

2016
1,245,409,487

      
2,264,380,886

          
784,756,880

          
784,756,880

          
154,083,626

          
154,083,626

          
2,184,249,993

          
3,203,221,392

          
68.19%

0.001398

2017
1,333,498,303

      
2,424,542,369

          
924,171,610

          
924,171,610

          
189,086,848

          
189,086,848

          
2,446,756,761

          
3,537,800,827

          
69.16%

0.001309

2018
1,476,462,885

      
2,684,477,973

          
1,016,133,620

      
1,016,133,620

      
201,564,340

          
201,564,340

          
2,694,160,845

          
3,902,175,933

          
69.04%

0.001166

2019
1,554,387,765

      
2,826,159,573

          
1,101,096,800

      
1,101,096,800

      
221,158,247

          
221,158,247

          
2,876,642,812

          
4,148,414,620

          
69.34%

0.001107

2020
1,758,545,454

      
3,197,355,372

          
1,165,790,630

      
1,165,790,630

      
231,978,525

          
231,978,525

          
3,156,314,609

          
4,595,124,527

          
68.69%

0.001043

2021
1,991,196,649

      
3,620,357,544

          
1,218,485,770

      
1,218,485,770

      
239,114,356

          
239,114,356

          
3,448,796,775

          
5,077,957,670

          
67.92%

0.000987

2022
2,666,706,343

      
4,848,556,988

          
1,413,171,870

      
1,413,171,870

      
243,380,270

          
243,380,270

          
4,323,258,483

          
6,505,109,128

          
66.46%

0.000870

N
o

te
: Taxab

le
 valu

e
 is 55%

 o
f m

arke
t valu

e
 fo

r p
rim

ary re
sid

e
n

tial p
ro

p
e

rty an
d

 100%
 fo

r all o
th

e
r p

ro
p

e
rty

N
o

te
: M

id
vale

 C
ity o

p
e

rate
s o

n
 a fiscal ye

ar b
e

gin
n

in
g Ju

ly 1 an
d

 e
n

d
in

g Ju
n

e
 30.  P

ro
p

e
rty taxe

s are
 ge

n
e

rally p
aid

 in
 N

o
ve

m
b

e
r.  P

ro
p

e
rty tax re

ve
n

u
e

 fo
r FY 2023 is b

ase
d

           u
p

o
n

 th
e

 cale
n

d
ar ye

ar 2022 rate
. Th

e
 sam

e
 is tru

e
 fo

r all fiscal ye
ars.

So
u

rces:  U
ta

h
 Sta

te Ta
x C

o
m

m
issio

n
 (233b

 List o
f Fin

a
l V

a
lu

es) a
n

d
 ta

xra
tes.u

ta
h

.g
o

v/ra
teD

eta
il

To
tal

P
e

rso
n

al an
d

P
rim

ary R
e

sid
e

n
tial

n
o

n
-re

sid
e

n
tial

C
e

n
trally asse

sse
d

Se
co

n
d

ary o
r 
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
P

ro
p

erty Tax R
ate

s—
D

ire
ct an

d
 O

ve
rlap

p
in

g G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ts 

Last Te
n

 C
ale

n
d

ar Ye
ars  

To
tal R

ate

S.S.L. V
alle

y
C

e
n

tral
Jo

rd
an

To
tal

M
id

San
d

y

U
n

ifie
d

M
o

sq
u

ito
U

tah
V

alle
y

To
tal

D
ire

ct an
d

V
alle

y
Su

b
u

rb
an

C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

C
ale

n
d

ar
G

e
n

e
ral 

G
.O

.
To

tal
Sch

o
o

l
Fire

 Se
rvice

Salt Lake
A

b
ate

m
e

n
t

W
ate

r C
o

n
s

W
ate

r C
o

n
s

O
ve

rlap
p

in
g

O
ve

rlap
p

in
g

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

Ye
ar

O
p

e
ratio

n
s

B
o

n
d

D
ire

ct R
ate

D
istrict (1)

A
re

a (2)
C

o
u

n
ty (3)

D
istrict

D
istrict

D
istrict (4)

R
ate

s
R

ate
s

D
istrict (5)

D
istrict (6)

D
istrict (7)

2014
0.000623

   
-

              
0.000623

    
0.007823

   
0.002097

    
0.003751

   
0.000020

       
0.000422

     
0.000399

     
0.014512

      
0.015135

      
0.000904

              
0.000945

0.000226

2015
0.000609

   
-

              
0.000609

    
0.007859

   
0.002000

    
0.003502

   
0.000019

       
0.000405

     
0.000400

     
0.014185

      
0.014794

      
0.000871

              
0.000885

0.000215

2016
0.001168

   
0.000230

   
0.001398

    
0.007227

   
0.001888

    
0.003278

   
0.000018

       
0.000400

     
0.000372

     
0.013183

      
0.014581

      
0.000816

              
0.000800

0.000199

2017
0.001095

   
0.000214

   
0.001309

    
0.007227

   
0.001888

    
0.003278

   
0.000017

       
0.000400

     
0.000372

     
0.013182

      
0.014491

      
0.000773

              
0.000758

0.000189

2018
0.000979

   
0.000187

   
0.001166

    
0.007117

   
0.001812

    
0.003104

   
0.000015

       
0.000400

     
0.000400

     
0.012848

      
0.014014

      
0.000699

              
0.000696

0.000176

2019
0.000932

   
0.000175

   
0.001107

    
-

               
-

                
-

               
0.000014

       
-

                
-

                
0.000014

      
0.001121

      
0.000663

              
0.000640

0.000169

2020
0.000883

   
-

              
0.000883

    
0.007297

   
0.001715

    
0.002547

   
0.000013

       
0.000400

     
0.000366

     
0.012338

      
0.013221

      
0.000619

              
0.000603

0.000161

2021
0.000987

   
-

              
0.000987

    
0.006990

   
0.001594

    
0.002459

   
0.000012

       
0.000400

     
0.000369

     
0.011824

      
0.012811

      
0.000570

              
0.000547

0.000147

2022
0.000870

   
-

              
0.000870

    
0.006053

   
0.001322

    
0.002020

   
0.000009

       
0.000400

     
0.000319

     
0.010123

      
0.010993

      
0.000448

              
0.000448

0.000119

2023
0.000892

   
-

              
0.000892

    
0.005705

   
0.001346

    
0.002041

   
0.000009

       
0.000400

     
0.000341

     
0.009842

      
0.010734

      
0.000442

              
0.000432

0.000176

N
o

te
:  M

id
vale

 C
ity o

p
e

rate
s o

n
 a fiscal ye

ar b
e

gin
n

in
g Ju

ly 1 an
d

 e
n

d
in

g Ju
n

e
 30.  P

ro
p

e
rty taxe

s are
 ge

n
e

rally p
aid

 in
 N

o
ve

m
b

e
r.  P

ro
p

e
rty tax re

ve
n

u
e

 fo
r FY 2023 is b

ase
d

 u
p

o
n

 th
e

 cale
n

d
ar

            ye
ar 2022 rate

. Th
e

 sam
e

 is tru
e

 fo
r all fiscal ye

ars.

(1) - Sch
o

o
l D

istrict in
clu

d
e

s C
an

yo
n

s Sch
o

o
l D

istrict an
d

 Jo
rd

an
/C

an
yo

n
s Sch

o
o

l D
istrict d

e
b

t se
rvice

 are
a. 

(2) - M
id

vale
 C

ity m
e

rge
d

 w
ith

 th
e

 U
n

ifie
d

 Fire
 Se

rvice
 A

re
a in

 2012.  P
rio

r to
 th

at tim
e

, M
id

vale
 C

ity p
ro

vid
e

d
 fire

 se
rvice

.  

(3) - Salt Lake
 C

o
u

n
ty tax rate

 liste
d

 in
clu

d
e

s Salt Lake
 C

o
u

n
ty Lib

rary, co
u

n
ty asse

ssin
g &

 co
lle

ctin
g le

vy, an
d

 m
u

ltico
u

n
ty asse

ssin
g &

 co
lle

ctin
g le

vy.

(4) - Jo
rd

an
 V

alle
y W

ate
r C

o
n

se
rvan

cy D
istrict is a taxin

g e
n

tity in
 8 o

f 9 taxin
g are

as w
ith

in
 M

id
vale

 C
ity

(5) - M
id

 V
alle

y is a taxin
g e

n
tity in

 1 o
f 9 taxin

g are
as w

ith
in

 M
id

vale
 C

ity

(6) - San
d

y Su
b

u
rb

an
 is a taxin

g e
n

tity in
 2 o

f 9 taxin
g are

as w
ith

in
 M

id
vale

 C
ity

(7) - C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

 is a taxin
g e

n
tity in

 1 o
f 9 taxin

g are
as w

ith
in

 M
id

vale
 C

ity

So
u

rce:  U
ta

h
 Sta

te Ta
x C

o
m

m
issio

n

C
ity D

ire
ct R

ate
O

ve
rlap

p
in

g R
ate

s - all M
id

vale
 taxin

g are
as

O
ve

rlap
p

in
g R

ate
s - so

m
e

 M
id

vale
 taxin

g are
as
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
P

rin
cip

a
l P

ro
p

e
rty Tax P

aye
rs 

C
u

rre
n

t an
d

 Te
n

 Ye
ars A

go
 

P
e

rce
n

tage
 o

f
P

e
rce

n
tage

 o
f

To
tal C

ity
To

tal C
ity

Taxab
le

Taxab
le

Taxab
le

Taxab
le

Taxp
aye

r
A

sse
sse

d
 V

alu
e

R
an

k
A

sse
sse

d
 V

alu
e

A
sse

sse
d

 V
alu

e
R

an
k

A
sse

sse
d

 V
alu

e

FO
R

T U
N

IO
N

 SH
O

P
P

IN
G

 C
EN

TER
 LLC

                              
109,068,320

          
1

3.16%

ZIO
N

S B
A

N
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TIO
N

, N
A

                                    
102,538,100

          
2

2.97%

P
C

C
P

 JSP
 SP

R
IN

G
S LLC

                                        
73,263,201

            
3

2.12%

JB
1 H

O
LD

IN
G

S, LLC
                                           

70,731,430
            

4
2.05%

A
R

B
O

R
 G

A
R

D
N

ER
 B

IN
G

H
A

M
 JU

N
C

TIO
N

 O
FFIC

E            
62,862,100

            
5

1.82%

SA
N

 M
O

R
ITZ A

P
A

R
TM

EN
TS LLC

                                   
57,410,980

            
6

1.66%

P
EA

C
E C

O
LISEU

M
, LLC

                                         
54,245,400

            
7

1.57%

FLSM
ID

TH
 U

SA
, IN

C
                                           

53,230,400
            

8
1.54%

TA
LA

V
ER

A
 A

T TH
E JU

N
C

TIO
N

, LLC
                               

44,460,075
            

9
1.29%

P
G

M
 JO

R
D

A
N

 B
LU

FFS
44,197,900

            
10

1.28%

D
D

R
 FO

R
T U

N
IO

N
 I &

 II LLC
                                   

45,576,100
            

1
2.87%

D
D

R
 M

ID
V

A
LLEY W

EST LLC
                                      

36,054,720
            

2
2.27%

A
R

B
O

R
 G

A
R

D
N

ER
 B

IN
G

H
A

M
 JU

N
C

TIO
N

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S LC

                  
35,007,100

            
3

2.21%

P
C

C
P

 JSP
 SP

R
IN

G
S LLC

                                        
26,044,040

            
4

1.64%

R
IV

ER
W

A
LK

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T H
O

LD
IN

G
S  LLC

                          
21,157,100

            
5

1.33%

JA
M

ES C
A

M
P

B
ELL C

O
M

P
A

N
Y LLC

                                  
16,977,800

            
6

1.07%

M
SB

 U
N

IO
N

 W
O

O
D

S LLC
                                         

15,111,300
            

7
0.95%

B
R

IG
H

TO
N

 P
LA

C
E H

O
LD

IN
G

S, LLC
                                

14,803,140
            

8
0.93%

V
A

LLEY G
R

EEN
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S LLC
                                   

14,571,900
            

9
0.92%

880 EA
ST C

A
N

YO
N

/2102 R
O

YA
L FA

R
M

S IN
V

ESTM
EN

T G
R

O
U

P
 IN

C
       

14,343,340
            

10
0.90%

672,007,906
$        

19.49%
239,646,540

$        
15.12%

So
u

rce:  Sa
lt La

ke C
o

u
n

ty

C
ale

n
d

ar Ye
ar 2022

C
ale

n
d

ar Ye
ar 2011
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
P

ro
p

erty Tax Le
vie

s an
d

 C
o

lle
cti

o
n

s 
Last Te

n
 C

ale
n

d
ar Ye

ars 

C
o

lle
ctio

n
s in

Taxe
s

P
e

rce
n

tage
Su

b
se

q
u

e
n

t
P

e
rce

n
tage

C
ale

n
d

ar Ye
ar

Le
vie

d
A

m
o

u
n

t
o

f Le
vy

Ye
ars

A
m

o
u

n
t

o
f Le

vy

2013
983,298

$                  
944,775

$                  
96.08%

25,251
$                    

970,026
$                  

98.65%

2014
1,124,593

                 
1,079,909

                 
96.03%

19,210
                       

1,099,119
                 

97.73%

2015
1,175,963

                 
1,124,808

                 
95.65%

22,342
                       

1,147,150
                 

97.55%

2016
2,487,950

                 
2,475,394

                 
99.50%

41,137
                       

2,516,531
                 

101.15%

2017
2,673,585

                 
2,591,313

                 
96.92%

31,060
                       

2,622,373
                 

98.08%

2018
2,640,631

                 
2,582,050

                 
97.78%

49,108
                       

2,631,158
                 

99.64%

2019
2,676,171

                 
2,608,154

                 
97.46%

36,797
                       

2,644,951
                 

98.83%

2020
3,262,762

                 
3,177,810

                 
97.40%

38,016
                       

3,215,826
                 

98.56%

2021
3,395,649

                 
3,282,048

                 
96.65%

44,421
                       

3,326,469
                 

97.96%

2022
3,760,124

                 
3,659,990

                 
97.34%

27,784
                       

3,687,774
                 

98.08%

So
u

rce:  Sa
lt La

ke C
o

u
n

ty Trea
su

rer

N
o

te
:  P

ro
p

e
rty tax co

lle
ctio

n
s m

ay b
e

 h
igh

e
r th

an
 th

e
 am

o
u

n
t le

vie
d

 an
d

 b
u

d
ge

te
d

 d
u

e
 to

 n
e

w
 gro

w
th

 an
d

 th
e

 co
lle

ctio
n

 o
f

            p
e

rso
n

al p
ro

p
e

rty tax.

To
tal C

o
lle

ctio
n

s to
 D

ate
Ye

ar o
f th

e
 Le

vy

C
o

lle
cte

d
 w

ith
in

 th
e
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
Sale

s Tax R
e

ve
n

u
e

 (P
o

in
t o

f Sa
le

) b
y In

d
u

stry 
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

C
ate

go
ry

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

R
e

tail sale
s

A
p

p
are

l/acce
sso

rie
s

140,976
$        

140,947
$        

144,672
$        

174,423
$        

162,381
$        

155,475
$        

165,718
$        

141,226
$         

157,549
$         

134,188
$         

A
u

to
 sale

s an
d

 se
rvice

s
498,464

          
570,713

          
647,366

          
942,626

          
1,000,134

      
1,011,055

      
1,068,879

      
1,008,921

        
1,245,291

        
1,198,085

        

B
ld

g m
ate

rials, h
ard

w
are

467,259
          

410,886
          

360,367
          

441,842
          

434,463
          

439,993
          

573,948
          

888,130
            

778,896
           

378,816
           

Eatin
g &

 d
rin

kin
g e

stab
lish

m
e

n
ts

730,231
          

782,303
          

910,302
          

1,015,571
      

1,061,026
      

1,110,965
      

1,131,165
      

1,277,063
        

1,406,047
        

1,595,648
        

G
ro

ce
rie

s
791,644

          
816,004

          
854,755

          
905,885

          
849,487

          
845,742

          
881,657

          
891,626

            
926,342

           
1,107,549

        

G
e

n
e

ral m
e

rch
an

d
ise

506,733
          

488,733
          

497,656
          

504,178
          

526,831
          

528,494
          

541,790
          

565,920
            

634,984
           

622,710
           

H
o

m
e

 fu
rn

ish
in

gs/e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

286,501
          

346,166
          

383,493
          

385,372
          

324,795
          

215,003
          

191,349
          

160,646
            

217,795
           

144,146
           

M
isce

llan
e

o
u

s re
tail

965,856
          

964,588
          

1,009,948
      

1,012,853
      

1,005,730
      

953,684
          

910,693
          

1,126,587
        

1,171,024
        

1,043,858
        

  To
tal re

tail
4,387,664

      
4,520,340

      
4,808,559

      
5,382,750

      
5,364,847

      
5,260,411

      
5,465,198

      
6,060,118

        
6,537,928

        
6,225,000

        

O
th

e
r

W
h

o
le

sale
 trad

e
749,354

          
729,746

          
722,490

          
799,404

          
759,449

          
1,038,996

      
1,096,832

      
1,207,647

        
1,537,373

        
1,377,936

        

Se
rvice

s
659,199

          
685,306

          
684,684

          
903,143

          
894,916

          
991,967

          
1,014,423

      
944,726

            
1,283,438

        
1,149,239

        

U
tility/co

m
m

u
n

icatio
n

525,515
          

538,699
          

558,343
          

584,132
          

583,360
          

547,936
          

512,938
          

511,468
            

564,631
           

628,043
           

M
an

u
factu

rin
g

201,939
          

226,271
          

201,273
          

210,250
          

233,724
          

247,118
          

288,754
          

339,305
            

368,153
           

370,280
           

M
isce

llan
e

o
u

s o
th

e
r

304,964
          

393,035
          

253,139
          

238,452
          

333,220
          

421,501
          

773,858
          

1,429,447
        

1,530,962
        

2,416,701
        

  To
tal o

th
e

r
2,440,971

      
2,573,057

      
2,419,929

      
2,735,380

      
2,804,669

      
3,247,518

      
3,686,805

      
4,432,593

        
5,284,557

        
5,942,199

        

G
ran

d
 To

tal
6,828,635

$    
7,093,397

$    
7,228,488

$    
8,118,130

$    
8,169,516

$    
8,507,929

$    
9,152,003

$    
10,492,711

$   
11,822,485

$   
12,167,199

$   

N
o

te
:  U

tah
 state

 law
 re

q
u

ire
s p

o
o

lin
g an

d
 re

d
istrib

u
tin

g (b
ase

d
 u

p
o

n
 p

o
p

u
latio

n
) fifty p

e
rce

n
t o

f e
ach

 m
u

n
icip

ality's "p
o

in
t o

f sale
" sale

s tax re
ve

n
u

e
.  M

id
vale

  

           C
ity lo

se
s ap

p
ro

xim
ate

ly n
in

e
 p

e
rce

n
t o

f its "p
o

in
t o

f sale
" sale

s tax re
ve

n
u

e
 to

 o
th

e
r m

u
n

icip
alitie

s.  Se
e

 "To
tal Sale

s Tax R
e

ve
n

u
e

" tab
le

So
u

rce:  U
ta

h
 Sta

te Ta
x C

o
m

m
issio

n

             M
id

va
le C

ity - Sa
les Ta

x b
y ca

teg
o

ry - Ju
n

e 2023

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
To

tal Sale
s Tax R

e
ve

n
u

e
 

Last Te
n

 Fiscal Ye
ars  

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

M
id

vale
 C

ity P
o

in
t o

f Sale
 re

ve
n

u
e

6,828,635
$   

7,093,397
$   

7,228,488
$   

8,118,130
$   

8,169,516
$   

8,507,928
$   

9,950,944
$   

10,492,711
$   

1
1
,8

2
2
,4

7
3
.5

7
   

1
2
,1

6
7
,1

9
6
.8

6
   

Le
ss 50%

 o
f P

o
in

t o
f sale

(3,414,320)
(3,546,702)

(3,614,247)
(4,059,114)

(4,084,775)
(4,253,961)

(4,975,472)
(5,246,356)

(5
,8

5
0
,6

5
7
.2

8
)

    
(6

,0
8
3
,6

0
7
.2

3
)

    

p
lu

s p
o

rtio
n

 o
f state

w
id

e
 p

o
o

l
2,598,910

2,767,016
2,957,289

3,170,136
3,380,453

3,508,542
4,078,562

4,417,115
5
,3

0
2
,3

2
5
.6

5
     

5
,3

9
3
,9

6
7
.6

6
     

To
tal d

istrib
u

tio
n

6,013,225
6,313,711

6,571,530
7,229,152

7,465,194
7,762,509

9,054,034
9,663,470

11,274,142
11,477,557

A
d

m
in

 fe
e

 an
d

 o
th

e
r d

e
d

u
ctio

n
s

(82,556)
(92,211)

(108,304)
(100,318)

(83,176)
(73,852)

(86,263)
(79,427)

(93,144)
(100,456)

N
e

t d
istrib

u
tio

n
5,930,669

$   
6,221,500

$   
6,463,226

$   
7,128,834

$   
7,382,018

$   
7,688,657

$   
8,967,771

$   
9,584,044

$      
11,180,998

$       
11,377,101

$       

P
o

in
t o

f sale
 re

ve
n

u
e

 lo
st to

 state
w

id
e

 p
o

o
l

815,410
$       

779,686
$       

656,958
$       

888,978
$       

704,322
$       

745,419
$       

896,910
$       

829,241
$         

548,332
$             

689,640
$             

So
u

rce:  U
ta

h
 Sta

te Ta
x C

o
m

m
issio

n

              M
id

va
le C

ity - Sa
les Ta

x b
y ca

teg
o

ry - Ju
n

e 2023

Fiscal Ye
ar
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
D

ire
ct an

d
 O

ve
rlap

p
in

g Sale
s Tax R

ates 
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

M
id

vale
 C

ity
C

o
u

n
ty O

p
tio

n
M

ass
Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

B
o

tan
ical, C

u
ltu

ral,
To

tal Sale
s

Ye
ar

D
ire

ct R
ate

State
 o

f U
tah

Salt Lake
 C

o
u

n
ty

Tran
sp

o
rtatio

n
Tran

sit
In

frastru
ctu

re
Zo

o
 (ZA

P
)

Tax R
ate

2014
1.00%

4.70%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.10%
6.85%

2015
1.00%

4.70%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.10%
6.85%

2016
1.00%

4.70%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.10%
6.85%

2017
1.00%

4.70%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.10%
6.85%

2018
1.00%

4.70%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.10%
6.85%

2019
1.00%

4.85%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.25%
0.10%

7.25%

2020
1.00%

4.85%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.25%
0.10%

7.25%

2021
1.00%

4.85%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.25%
0.10%

7.25%

2022
1.00%

4.85%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.25%
0.10%

7.25%

2023
1.00%

4.85%
0.25%

0.25%
0.55%

0.25%
0.10%

7.25%

So
u

rce:  U
ta

h
 Sta

te Ta
x C

o
m

m
issio

n
 - w

w
w

.ta
x.u

ta
h

.g
o

v/sa
les/ra

tes.h
tm

l
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
R

ate
p

aye
r Fe

e
s—

B
u

sin
ess-Typ

e A
cti

viti
e

s 
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

C
u

lin
ary w

ate
r

3,893,407
$   

3,966,808
$   

4,087,429
$   

4,390,444
$   

4,540,074
$   

4,425,842
$   

5,055,765
$     

5,535,192
$     

5,452,789
$     

5,942,291
$     

Se
w

e
r

1,277,764
     

1,448,267
     

1,632,358
     

1,917,097
     

2,158,794
     

2,261,354
     

2,568,389
       

2,792,422
       

3,051,297
        

3,355,393
        

Sto
rm

 w
ate

r
1,030,112

     
1,531,045

     
1,561,721

     
1,719,035

     
1,732,746

     
1,735,881

     
1,987,306

       
2,041,234

       
2,066,455

        
2,089,771

        

Stre
e

t Ligh
tin

g
239,401

         
245,793

         
371,086

         
379,598

         
379,360

         
382,474

         
389,100

           
399,760

           
404,891

           
405,821

           

San
itatio

n
982,645

         
995,788

         
906,863

         
932,126

         
931,339

         
1,025,598

     
1,132,844

       
1,252,012

       
1,275,598

        
1,327,682

        

Te
le

co
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s

15,683
           

15,291
           

17,121
           

21,288
           

27,193
           

20,186
           

20,732
             

21,060
             

16,194
              

13,305
              

To
tal

7,439,012
$   

8,202,992
$   

8,576,578
$   

9,359,588
$   

9,769,506
$   

9,851,335
$   

11,154,135
$   

12,041,681
$   

12,267,225
$   

13,134,264
$   
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
R

ati
o

s o
f O

u
tstan

d
in

g D
e

b
t b

y Typ
e

 
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

G
e

n
e

ral
Excise

 Tax
Sale

s Tax
R

D
A

*
M

B
A

** Le
ase

To
tal

P
e

rce
n

tage
 o

f

Fiscal
O

b
ligatio

n
R

e
ve

n
u

e
R

e
ve

n
u

e
R

e
ve

n
u

e
R

e
ve

n
u

e
D

ire
ct

N
o

te
s

R
e

ve
n

u
e

N
o

te
s

P
rim

ary
p

e
rso

n
al

P
e

r

Ye
ar

B
o

n
d

s
B

o
n

d
s

B
o

n
d

s
B

o
n

d
s

B
o

n
d

s
B

o
rro

w
in

gs
P

ayab
le

Le
ase

s
B

o
n

d
s

P
ayab

le
Le

ase
s

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t

in
co

m
e

C
ap

ita

2013
2,454,709

   
1,709,241

              
-

                          
25,666,343

         
8,901,441

           
-

                      
105,000

         
-

            
21,971,398

   
297,076

   
22,966

                  
61,128,174

      
10.60%

2,021
        

2014
2,148,269

   
1,447,371

              
-

                          
24,835,479

         
8,904,937

           
-

                      
90,000

           
-

            
23,961,176

   
314,024

   
-

                         
61,701,256

      
10.24%

2,006
        

2015
1,826,829

   
1,185,501

              
-

                          
23,954,615

         
8,673,433

           
-

                      
75,000

           
-

            
22,980,954

   
287,867

   
-

                         
58,984,199

      
8.95%

1,859
        

2016
1,495,049

   
898,631

                 
-

                          
36,004,751

         
8,436,929

           
-

                      
60,000

           
-

            
21,812,732

   
284,547

   
-

                         
68,992,639

      
9.78%

2,115
        

2017
1,143,949

   
611,761

                 
9,137,669

              
35,068,887

         
7,985,425

           
-

                      
45,000

           
-

            
20,718,676

   
275,209

   
-

                         
74,986,576

      
10.69%

2,270
        

2018
777,509

       
309,891

                 
8,928,894

              
53,673,494

         
7,523,921

           
-

                      
30,000

           
-

            
26,005,919

   
230,540

   
-

                         
97,480,168

      
13.22%

2,935
        

2019
396,069

       
-

                          
8,460,119

              
60,516,705

         
7,062,417

           
-

                      
15,000

           
-

            
24,539,935

   
197,628

   
-

                         
101,187,873

   
12.93%

3,020
        

2020
-

                
-

                          
7,931,344

              
39,658,996

         
6,590,913

           
-

                      
-

                  
-

            
23,053,951

   
153,430

   
-

                         
77,388,634

      
9.41%

2,268
        

2021
-

                
-

                          
7,387,569

              
37,459,287

         
6,104,409

           
2,163,892

         
-

                  
-

            
22,393,968

   
125,737

   
-

                         
75,634,862

      
8.47%

2,099
        

2022
-

                
-

                          
6,828,794

              
35,180,578

         
5,607,905

           
7,465,175

         
-

                  
-

            
19,991,984

   
111,601

   
-

                         
75,186,037

      
7.25%

2,092
        

2023
-

                
-

                          
6,250,019

              
32,703,166

         
5,101,401

           
6,962,743

         
-

                  
-

            
18,275,058

   
98,211

     
-

                         
69,390,598

      
6.69%

1,947
        

*R
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t A
ge

n
cy

**M
u

n
icip

al B
u

ild
in

g A
u

th
o

rity

N
o

te
s:

O
u

tstan
d

in
g b

o
n

d
 am

o
u

n
ts in

clu
d

e
 re

late
d

 u
n

am
o

rtize
d

 p
re

m
iu

m
s/d

isco
u

n
ts.

D
e

tail re
gard

in
g th

e
 C

ity's o
u

tstan
d

in
g d

e
b

t can
 b

e
 fo

u
n

d
 in

 th
e

 n
o

te
s to

 th
e

 fin
an

cial state
m

e
n

ts.  

Se
e

 "D
e

m
o

grap
h

ic an
d

 Eco
n

o
m

ic Statistics" fo
r p

e
rso

n
al in

co
m

e
 an

d
 p

e
r cap

ita d
ata.

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t A

ctivitie
s

B
u

sin
e

ss-typ
e

 A
ctivitie

s
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Midvale City  
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Percentage of

General Estimated Estimated Actual

Fiscal Obligation Actual Value Value Per

Year Bonds of Property of Property Population Capita

2014 2,148,269                   2,418,769,100               0.09% 30,764                   70                      

2015 1,826,829                   2,663,008,856               0.07% 31,725                   58                      

2016 1,495,049                   2,855,507,108               0.05% 32,613                   46                      

2017 1,143,949                   3,203,221,392               0.04% 33,035                   35                      

2018 777,509                       3,537,800,827               0.02% 33,208                   23                      

2019 396,069                       3,902,175,933               0.01% 33,506                   12                      

2020 -                                4,148,414,620               0.00% 34,124                   -                     

2021 -                                4,595,124,527               0.00% 36,028                   -                     

2022 -                                5,077,957,670               0.00% 35,938                   -                     

2023 -                                6,505,109,128               0.00% 35,637                   -                     

Note:

Outstanding bond amounts include related unamortized premiums/discounts.
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Midvale City  
Direct ad Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of June 30, 2023 

Estimated Amount

Percentage Applicable

Applicable to

Governmental Unit (Jurisdiction) Outstanding debt to Midvale City Midvale City

Direct:

Midvale City Corporation 13,212,762$               100.0% 13,212,762.2$         

Redevelopment Agency of Midvale City 32,703,166                 100.0% 32,703,166               

Midvale City Municipal Building Authority 5,101,401                    100.0% 5,101,401                 

  Total Direct Debt 51,017,329               

Overlapping:

Canyons School District 394,870,000 11.70% 46,199,790               

Central Utah Water Conservancy District 123,254,854               1.60% 1,972,078                 

Salt Lake County 117,565,000               2.40% 2,821,560                 

Sandy Suburban Improvement District 2,962,000                    1.80% 53,316                       

  Total Overlapping Debt 51,046,744               

     Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 102,064,073$          

Notes:

Direct debt amounts include related unamortized premiums/discounts.

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. 

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by 

the residents and businesses of Midvale City. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to 

issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken 

into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and therefore responsible for 

repaying the debt of each overlapping government.
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Midvale City  
Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unemployment

Fiscal Personal Income Per Rate

Year Population Income Capita (Percentage)

2014 30,764                602,273,191$                         19,577$                             3.9

2015 31,725                658,848,428                           20,767                               4.0

2016 32,613                705,267,157                           21,625                               3.4

2017 33,035                701,442,593                           21,233                               3.6

2018 33,208                737,492,670                           22,208                               3.5

2019 33,506                782,772,888                           23,362                               3.0

2020 34,124                822,461,002                           24,102                               7.4

2021 36,028                892,752,252                           24,779                               3.2

2022 35,938                1,037,464,582                       28,868                               2.4

 *2023 35,637                1,037,464,582                       29,112                               2.7

Sources:

Personal Income:  https://tax.utah.gov/econstats/federal-returns

Population - https://www.census.gov

Unemployment rate -https://data.bls.gov/timeseries

/LAUCN490350000000003?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true

*Note:

Personal income for the year 2023 relies on data from 2022, 

given that information beyond that timeframe is not accessible as of the publication date.
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M
ID

V
A

LE C
ITY

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

  
O

p
erati

n
g In

d
icato

rs 
Last Te

n
 Fiscal Ye

ars  

Fu
n

ctio
n

2013
2014

2015
2016

2017
2018

2019
2020

2021
2022

2023

G
e

n
e

ral G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t

R
e

sid
e

n
tial B

u
ild

in
g p

e
rm

its issu
e

d
138

226
178

89
48

94
137

12
39

56
72

N
u

m
b

e
r o

f u
n

its (1)
162

433
385

229
115

115
657

450
181

283
203

C
o

n
stru

ctio
n

 co
st (1)

$25,722,428
$71,592,496

$59,789,782
$40,547,273

$19,908,000
$19,296,600

$75,240,016
$75,509,858

$28,547,220
$47,839,689

$46,716,934

W
ate

r

R
e

sid
e

n
tial w

ate
r co

n
n

e
ctio

n
s

5,705
5,885

5,995
6,056

6,075
6,100
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6,540
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6,552

6,560
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o

n
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sid
e

n
tial w

ate
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n
n
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n
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1,147
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1,304

1,297
1,358

1,405
1,429
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n
su

m
p

tio
n
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o

u
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d
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n
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0
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0
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n
s)

887,335
826,831

805,963
989,941

986,956
950,380
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b
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e
n
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M
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A
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n
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o
n

 
Last Te

n
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ars  

Fu
n

ctio
n

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

P
u

b
lic w

o
rks

Stre
e

ts (m
ile

s)
70

70
70

70
70

70
70

92
95

92

Stre
e

tligh
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o
le

s
1,021

1,372
1,372

1,381
1,384

1,384
1,384

1,568
1,112

1,568

P
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d
 re
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D
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
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e

ve
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p
e

d
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5.7

2.78
2.78

2.78
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0.0
0.0

C
e

m
e

te
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1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

C
u
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n
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1

1
1

1
1

1
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1
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1
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1
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Midvale City 

Finance Department 

7505 South Holden Street 

Midvale UT, 84047-7180 

Phone: (801) 567-7200 

WWW.MIDVALECITY.ORG   




